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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. ZOU Gebing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZENG lJin (resigned on 8 June 2021)

Mr. SHEN Zhidong

Mr. WU Yueming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. WU Weixia (appointed on 14 April 2022)

Mr. TAN Tianhong (appointed on 14 April 2022)
Ms. ZHAO Hongyan (appointed on 14 April 2022)
Mr. LIU Haifeng

Mr. QIAN Jun (resigned on 14 April 2022)

Mr. CHU Guodi

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. WU Weixia
(Chairlady of committee, appointed on 14 April 2022)
Mr. TAN Tianhong (appointed on 14 April 2022)
Ms. ZHAO Hongyan (appointed on 14 April 2022)
Mr. LIU Haifeng
Mr. QIAN Jun (resigned on 14 April 2022)
Mr. CHU Guodi

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. WU Weixia (appointed on 14 April 2022)
Mr. TAN Tianhong
(Chairman of committee, appointed on 14 April 2022)
Ms. ZHAO Hongyan (appointed on 14 April 2022)
Mr. LIU Haifeng
Mr. QIAN Jun (resigned on 14 April 2022)
Mr. CHU Guodi
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
DRIEFR (E)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. ZHAO Hongyan
(Chairman of committee, appointed on 14 April 2022)
Ms. WU Weixia (appointed on 14 April 2022)
Mr. TAN Tianhong (appointed on 14 April 2022)
Mr. LIU Haifeng
Mr. QIAN Jun (resigned on 14 April 2022)
Mr. CHU Guodi

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAM Hoi Lun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. WU Yueming
Mr. LAM Hoi Lun

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
DRIEFR (E)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC

No. 500 Youquan Road
Haining Economic Development Zone
Zhejiang Province, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 708-709, Laford Centre
838 Lai Chi Kok Road

Cheung Sha Wan

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Bank of Jiaxing

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Taishin International Bank

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.

STOCK CODE

1575

WEBSITE

www.morrishome.com.hk
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHE

Revenue decreased by approximately 17.1% to approximately
RMB502.9 million in 2021 (2020: approximately RMB606.4
million)

Gross profit increased by approximately 69.6% to approximately
RMB99.7 million in 2021 (2020: approximately RMB58.8
million)

Loss for the year increased by approximately 36.1% to
approximately RMB123.4 million in 2021 (2020: approximately
RMB90.7 million)

Basic loss per share was approximately RMB13.15 cents in
2021 as compared with basic loss per share of approximately
RMB9.56 cents in 2020

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend
(2020: nil) for the year ended 31 December 2021
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Morris Home Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“2021" or
the “Reporting Period”) to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

2021 was a challenging year for the Group as the global pandemic of
the COVID-19 crisis continue to hit the global economies badly. In the
meantime, we were still faced with the trade-war between China and
the US.

Since our Group'’s listing on the Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 2017, we accelerated
the pace of development of our retail business and establishment of
our own brand. The determination to create a valuable and strong
retail furniture brand is the long-term aim of the Group, and we will
cautiously deploy resources during the uncertain times to develop our

presence and enhance our brand image.

Product is the key to the long-term success of our business, and
“Exquisite” product is the main theme for years to come. We have
devoted more time and effort to improve our product quality and
style, to enhance the product value for our consumers. With our
continuous focus on the R&D, we have received high technology
enterprise recognition, and our research house has been awarded
as the provincial level research center. We hope to acquire more

achievements, with the view to bringing better products to customers.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EFE®wE (R)

OUTLOOK

The Group expect to be faced with more challenges and opportunities
in 2022. As a result, the board will keep a close watch on the
development of the situation, continue to refine our management

and make timely adjustments to our operation and sales strategies.

Looking forward to 2022, the board will continue to lead all staff of
the Group to step onto the international stage and develop our self-

owned brands, aiming at becoming a well-known furniture brand

enterprise in the world.

Zou Gebing
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 10 May 2022
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGNEEERRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zou Gebing, aged 45, is the chairman and CEO of the Group
and was appointed as an executive Director on 18 March 2016. He is
responsible for overseeing and mapping the Group’s growth strategy

and overall management.

Prior to joining the Group, he was the marketing and development
manager in Zhejiang Kasen Industrial Group Co., Ltd., and was deputy
general manager in Hongyang Group Co., Ltd., from July 1997 to
March 2000 and from May 2000 to March 2002, respectively, and
had been mainly responsible for exploration and development of
overseas markets of sofas and other furniture. He joined Morris Group
Co., Ltd. ("Morris PRC") as part of its management team in May
2002, served as its vice chairman and general manager since February
2005, and became the chairman of Morris PRC in January 2012.

Mr. Zou obtained a bachelor’'s degree in English from Shanghai
International Studies University in the PRC in July 1997 and a master’s
degree in business administration for senior management from
Zhejiang University in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
in March 2007. He had also served as a corporate tutor for MBA
postgraduates in the Management School of Zhejiang University
from April 2007 to March 2012. Mr. Zou was accredited as a senior
economist by the Senior Economist Qualification Committee of

Zhejiang Province in December 2007.
With over 20 years of industry experience as mentioned above, Mr.
Zou is an experienced entrepreneur in furniture manufacturing related

businesses.

Mr. Zou's spouse, Ms. Wu Xiangfei (one of the controlling

shareholders of the Company), is a cousin of Mr. Shen’s spouse.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSNEEERERE (&)

Mr. Zeng Jin, aged 48, was appointed as an executive Director on
18 March 2016 and resigned on 8 June 2021. Prior to his resignation,
Mr. Zeng was the senior vice president and head of production
and quality management of the Group, responsible for overseeing
production planning and manufacturing and quality management
the Group. He has extensive experience in production and quality

management.

Prior to joining the Group, he had worked as a technician in Shanghai
Hongdun Anti-Counterfeit Material Co., Ltd. from August 1997 to
May 1998. He had then worked at Uniplas (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from
May 1998 to September 2000. He then subsequently worked as a
quality engineer at Krone Communications (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from
September 2000 to November 2001. He had then been employed
as a plant manager assistant and manager in the engineering
department of Shanghai Trayton Furniture Co., Ltd. from November
2001 to January 2005. He then joined Morris PRC and was appointed
as a general manager assistant in January 2005 and then as a deputy
general manager in November 2011. He was then employed by the
Group as a senior vice president and the head of production and
quality management immediately after completion of the business
transfer in December 2015.

Mr. Zeng obtained his double bachelor’s degrees in polymer science
and computer software from the East China University of Science and
Technology in Shanghai, PRC in July 1997 and a master of Business
Administration degree from Donghua University in Shanghai, PRC in
June 2008.

Mr. Shen Zhidong, aged 47, is a senior vice president of the Group
and was appointed as an executive Director on 6 July 2017. He is also
a director of Masia Industries Limited, a subsidiary of the Company
in Cambodia. Mr. Shen is the head of administrative operations and

human resources matters of the Group.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSNEEERERE (&)

Mr. Shen had served in the government sectors in Haining for over
ten years. From February 1999 to June 2010, Mr. Shen had served
in the Organization Department of Haining Municipal Committee of
the Communist Party of China in many positions including, among
others, as a section member, a deputy section leader, a section leader,
a committee member and a deputy bureau level coordinator. From
June 2010 to January 2014, Mr. Shen served as the deputy director of
the General Office of the People’s Government of Haining. In January
2014, Mr. Shen was employed by Morris PRC as its vice president. He
was employed by the Group as the senior vice president immediately
after completion of the transfer of the furniture division of Morris PRC
to the Group in December 2015.

Mr. Shen graduated from the Party School Open College of the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China in the study of

economic management in December 2002.

Mr. Shen’s spouse is a cousin of Ms. Wu Xiangfei, one of the
controlling shareholders of the Company and the spouse of Mr. Zou.

Mr. Wu Yueming, aged 38, is the general manager of the
administrative department of the Company and was appointed as
an executive Director on 6 June 2018. He is mainly responsible for
coordinating and managing back office support works and public
relations of the Company. He is also a director of Zhejiang Apollo
Leather Products Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co.,
Ltd., each a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Wu joined Morris PRC
in 2005 where he worked as a technician of semi-finished sofa
production. He was subsequently promoted to manager of the
logistics department in September 2010, deputy office director in
April 2012 and standing deputy office director in August 2014 at
Morris PRC. He was then employed as the general manager of the
administrative department of the Company in January 2017. He
obtained the qualification of assistant economist issued by the Haining
City Human Resources and Social Security Bureau in November 2014.
He also obtained the graduation certificate from the Normal College
of the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics in administration

management through distance learning in July 2016.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSNEEERERE (&)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Haifeng, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 6 July 2017 and has tendered resignation
to take effect on 16 May 2022. Mr. Liu is mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board.
He is also a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination

Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Liu has been a tutor to master students in public administration
of faculties of humanities of Donghua University since 2011
and a deputy manager of Donghua University Master of Public
Administration Center since September 2014.

Mr. Liu obtained his master degree in education from Shanghai
Normal University in June 2004. Mr. Liu later obtained his doctoral
degree in management science and engineering from Donghua
University School of Business and Management in June 2009. He then
later completed his postdoctoral study in applied economics at Fudan
University and obtained his certificate of postdoctoral in May 2014.

Mr. Chu Guodi, aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 28 May 2019 and has tendered resignation
to take effect on 16 May 2022. Mr. Chu is mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board. He is
also a member of each of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee. He has over 18 years of experience
as a practicing lawyer in China. He is currently a partner of 7 /T /&
) 2 A = 7 FT (Zhejiang Haixiang Law Firm*). Mr. Chu has been
an independent director of T EEH FEE L 2RI ERHBR QA
(Zhejiang Huatie Construction Safety Science And Technology Co.,
Ltd.*), a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange with a stock
code of 603300, since June 2014 and an independent director of
BRI 9 B R A 7] (Brother Enterprises Holding Co., Ltd.*), a
company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange with a stock code of
002562, since April 2017.

Mr. Chu is a member of /1 % 2 B /2 A # & (All-China Lawyers’
Association*). He graduated from Zhejiang University with a bachelor

degree of law.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSNEEERERE (&)

Mr. Qian Jun, aged 37, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 31 July 2020 and resigned
on 14 April 2022. Prior to his resignation, Mr. Qian was mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement to
the Board. He was also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination

Committee.

Mr. Qian is a practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 2012 with 9 years extensive practising
experience in accounting field. He obtained Bachelor of Economics
degree from Fudan University, Shanghai, China in 2007. He is
currently the department manager of Zhejiang Zhengjian Certified
Public Accountants Co., Limited in China.

Ms. Wu Weixia, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 14 April 2022 and is mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement
to the Board. She is also the chairlady of the Audit Committee and
a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination

Committee.

Ms. Wu holds a master’s degree of Professional Accounting from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. She is a practicing
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She
joined Shanghai D&M Baychine Certified Public Accountants Co.,
Limited since 2010 and is currently served as the chief accountant. Ms.
Wu has over 20 years of extensive experience in accounting, finance,

auditing and taxation.

Mr. Tan Tianhong, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 14 April 2022 and is mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement to
the Board. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of each of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSNEEERERE (&)

Mr. Tan holds a bachelor’s degree of Electronic Engineering and
Instrumentation from Xian Shiyou University. During the period from
May 2015 to December 2017, he was the Managing Director of
Zhejiang University Environmental Engineering Co., Limited. During
the period from January 2018 to December 2021, he has been
the Sales Director of Shanghai AEGIS Industrial Safety Co., Limited
("AEGIS"). The shares of AEGIS (Stock code: 430234) have been
quoted on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations System
during the period from 2 July 2013 to 11 March 2021.

Ms. Zhao Hongyan, aged 59 was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 14 April 2022 and is mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement
to the Board. She is also the chairlady of the Nomination Committee
and a member of each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee.

Ms. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree of Economics from Xinjiang
University of Finance & Economics in 1985, a master’s degree of
Economics (Finance) from Xiamen University in 1998 and a Doctor of
Management Science and Engineering from Donghua University in
2008. Ms. Zhao initially served as a professor in Donghua University in
2012, and was employed as a Doctoral advisor in 2013. Ms. Zhao is
currently the executive committee member of China Society of World

Economics.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSNEEERERE (&)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chen Meijuan, aged 43, has over 19 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Ms. Chen joined the Group
in June 2002 and served as Deputy General Manager of Finance
Department of the Group before her appointment as the CFO. Ms.
Chen was accredited as a senior accountant by the Assessment
Committee of Senior Accountant Qualification of Zhejiang Province in
December 2019.

Ms. Shen Jiangping, aged 48, joined Morris PRC in October 2001,
joined the Group in December 2015 after completion of the business
transfer, and resigned on 30 June 2021. Prior to her resignation, Ms.
Shen was the general manager of Administrative Department, mainly
responsible for coordinating and managing back office support works

and public relations of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEET R

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2021, the Group continued to develop new
markets and invest in product design and research and development,
and establishment and expansion of sales channels.

Due to the decrease in sales volume of sofa, sofa covers and other
furniture products as a result of the supply-chain disruption caused by
the outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic, the Group's revenue decreased
from approximately RMB606.4 million in 2020 to approximately
RMB502.9 million in 2021, representing a decrease of approximately
17.1%. Loss for the year was increased from approximately RMB90.7
million in 2020 to approximately RMB123.4 million in 2021, principally
due to the increase in rental expenses, director remuneration and the

employee benefit expenses in China.

Business development in North America

As our revenue was mainly derived from the U.S., the Sino-US tension
and the COVID-19 epidemic had material impacts on the Group,
leading to a significant decrease in our results in North America as
compared to the same period of last year. Due to the partial sharing
of tariffs with our US customers, the profit margin of our exported

products was also affected.

Retail business development in China and Hong
Kong

As of December 2021, the Group had a total of 1 flagship showroom,
1 self-operated retail store, 35 franchise stores across different

provinces in Mainland China.

In Hong Kong, the Group had a total of 4 self-operated retail stores
in Central, Sha Tin, Tsuen Wan and Tai Kok Tsui, respectively and 6
points of consignment sales in Kowloon Bay, Kwun Tong, Yuen Long,
Wan Chai, Tsuen Wan and Lai Chi Kok. The Group also introduced
auxiliary decoration services to establish one-stop services including
decoration and furniture setting, instilling its stylish home design

concept into Hong Kong market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWRD T (R)

Business development in other countries

The COVID-19 has an ongoing effect on the consumption sentiment
on a worldwide basis. To cope with these challenges, we have
continued to make efforts to maintain the relationship with customers
and will continue to leverage on our resources in growing the

business with these customers.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year of 2021, the principal business activities of Group
comprise the manufacturing and sales of sofas, sofa covers and other

furniture products.

During the year, the revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB502.9 million (2020: approximately RMB606.4 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 17.1% as compared with
last year, which was mainly due to the impact of COVID-19 epidemic
globally. Affected by the prolonged effect of COVID-19 on worldwide
basis, we experienced reduced sales volume of products and
decreased revenue from sales of sofa, sofa covers and other furniture

products.

The net loss of the Group amounted to approximately RMB123.4
million during the year, as compared with the net loss of RMB90.7
million in last year. The increase in net loss were mainly attributable
to (i) the increase in rental expenses, director remuneration and the
employee benefit expenses in China; and (ii) decrease in other income
and gains from gain on modification of convertible loan, gain in

disposal of subsidiaries and compensation on factory relocation.

The Company’s basic loss per ordinary share was RMB13.15 cents
for the year of 2021 (2020: RMB9.56 cents) based on the loss for
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company of
approximately RMB121.5 million (2020: RMB91.2 million), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 924,188,000 for the
year of 2021 (2020: 953,526,940).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWRD T (R)

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group decreased by approximately 26.4%
from approximately RMB547.6 million in 2020 to approximately
RMB403.3 million in 2021, which was primarily due to the decrease in

sales volume.

Gross profit

The Group’s gross profit for the year was approximately RMB99.7
million (2020: approximately RMB58.8 million), representing an
increase of approximately 69.6% as compared with last year. The
gross profit margin increased from 9.7% in 2020 to 19.8% in 2021
primarily due to the increase in sales of higher gross margin product in
Hong Kong and other markets and the reverse of inventory provision

due to clearance sales.

Other income and gains

The other income and gains of the Group decreased from
approximately RMB120.5 million in 2020 to approximately RMB23.9
million in 2021. Such decrease was primarily due to the one-off gain
on modification of convertible loan, gain on disposal of subsidiaries
and compensation on factory relocation in 2020 which did not recur
in 2021.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately 30.2% from approximately RMB97.2 million in 2020 to
approximately RMB67.8 million in 2021. Such decrease was primarily

due to the decrease in marketing cost and freight out cost.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group increased by approximately
12.9% from approximately RMB99.8 million in 2020 to approximately
RMB112.7 million in 2021, which was primarily due to increase
in rental expenses, director remuneration and employee benefit

expenses in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWRD T (R)

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group increased by approximately 27.8%
from approximately RMB17.6 million in 2020 to approximately
RMB22.5 million in 2021, which was primarily due to the increase in

interest on bank loans.

Income tax expense

The income tax expense of the Group increased by approximately
6.9% from approximately RMB2.9 million in 2020 to approximately
RMB3.1 million in 2021. The movement was mainly attributable to
the over-provision in prior year in China and net off the increase of

deferred tax expenses.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Borrowing and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings amounted to approximately RMB64.6 million, all of
which were repayable within twelve months from 31 December 2021.
The bank and other borrowings’ interest rates ranged between 4.5%

t0 9% per annum.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, which is total debts (comprised of
amounts due to related companies, lease liabilities, convertible loan
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) divided by equity
attributable to owners of the Company as at the end of the year
and multiplied by 100%. The gearing ratio of the Group was not
applicable as at 31 December 2021 and the gearing ratio as at 31
December 2020 amounted to 345.5%.

Capital commitments

The Group did not have any capital commitment as at 31 December
2021 and 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWRD T (R)

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2021.

Trade receivables

The trade receivables of the Group decreased to approximately
RMB39.9 million (2020: approximately RMB140.4 million) as at
31 December 2021,

Group's customers in the fourth quarter in 2021 as compared to the

primarily due to the decrease in sales to the
corresponding period in 2020.

Trade and bills payables

The trade and bills payables of the Group decreased to approximately
RMB179.1 million (2020: approximately RMB265.2 million) as at 31
December 2021, primarily due to the decrease in purchases from the
Group's suppliers in the fourth quarter in 2021 as compared to the

corresponding period in 2020.

Foreign exchange exposure

Revenue from major customers is mainly from the U.S. while the
production facilities of the Group are mainly located in the PRC.
Accordingly, most of the sales are denominated in U.S. dollar while
the costs arising from the Group’s operations are generally settled
in RMB. As a result, fluctuations in the value of U.S. dollar against
RMB could adversely affect the financial results of the Group. During
2021,
impacts on its operations or liquidity as a result of currency exchange

the Group did not experience any material difficulties or

fluctuation. The Group used forward exchange contract for hedging
purposes during 2021 and no hedging instruments outstanding as at
31 December 2021 (2020: approximately RMB313,000). The Group
will continue to monitor closely the exchange rate risk arising from its
existing operations and new investments in the future. The Group will
further implement the necessary hedging arrangement to mitigate

any significant foreign exchange risk if and when appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWRD T (R)

GOING CONCERN

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately RMB123,402,000
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and, as of that date,
the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets and total
liabilities exceeded its total assets by approximately RMB47,876,000
and RMB51,171,000 respectively. As at the same date, the Group’s
aggregate interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, lease liabilities
and convertible loan amounted to approximately RMB64,616,000,
RMB25,002,000 and RMB69,977,000, respectively, whilst its cash
and cash equivalents amounted to approximately RMB13,485,000.
The Group's convertible bonds with outstanding principal amounts
of approximately RMB69,977,000 as at 31 December 2021, matured
and fell due for repayment during the year ended 31 December 2021.
These outstanding principals amounts and related overdue interests,
amounting to approximately RMB72,875,000 in aggregate, were not
repaid as at 31 December 2021.

In view of the above circumstances, the Directors have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and financial position of the
Group and its available sources of financing in assessing whether the
Group will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. Certain plans and measures have been taken to mitigate the
liquidity position and to improve the Group’s financial position which

include, but are not limited to the followings:

(i) The Group is taking measures to tighten cost control with an

aim to attain positive cash flow from operations;

(i) Two of the indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group filed
pre-restructuring applications with the People’s Court of Haining
City to request the Court to allow those two subsidiaries to

formulate pre-restructuring plans to resolve the debt positions;

(iiy  The Group is in the process of negotiating with its convertible
loan holder and bank to restructure and/or refinance its
borrowings, and secure necessary facilities to meet the Group’s

working capital and financial requirements in the near future;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWRD T (R)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The Directors are considering various alternatives to strengthen
the capital base of the Company including but not limited to,
seeking new investment and business opportunities. Subsequent
to 31 December 2021, the Company has entered into the
placing agreement with the placing agent on 25 February 2022.
A total of 200,000,000 placing shares have been successfully
placed by the placing agent to not less than six placees at
placing price of HK$0.12 per placing share. The net proceed
from placing amounted to approximately HK$23.71 million and
the placing has been completed on 23 March 2021,

The ultimate holding company of the Company, Morris Capital
Limited, has stated that it is willing to provide financial support
to the Group to enable the Group to continue as a going

concern and to settle its liabilities as and when they fall due;

The Group is currently re-negotiating the repayment schedules
with certain of its debtors and endeavouring to request them
to repay the trade receivables, other receivables and amounts
due from related companies in accordance with the repayment
schedules agreed with them; and

On 22 April 2022, the Company and a potential subscriber
(“Potential Subscriber”) entered into a memorandum of
understanding, pursuant to which the Potential Subscriber
intents to subscribe for and the Company intends to allot
and issue 1,300,000,000 new shares of the Company. The
indicative total consideration for the Subscription Shares shall
be HK$81,900,000 at HK$0.063 per Share. However, the
completion for subscription of shares could not be determined
as of the date of the approval of the consolidated financial

statements.

The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the above-

mentioned plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient

working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial

obligations as they fall due within twelve months from the date of

approval of the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the

directors of the Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare

the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWRD T (R)

Notwithstanding the above, since the execution of the above plans
and measures are in progress, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether management of the Group will be able to achieve its plans
and measures as described above. Whether the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern would depend upon the Group’s ability
to achieve these plans and measures, including ability to repay, renew
or to restructure and/or refinance its borrowings with convertible
bonds holders and bank, generate adequate financing and operating
cash flows.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments
may have to be made to reflect the situation that assets may need
to be realised other than at the amounts at which they are currently
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position. In addition,
the Group may have to provide for further liabilities that might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and
liabilities. The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
the consolidated financial statements.

THE VIEWS OF THE MANAGEMENT AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE ON THE DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

In view of the net current liabilities position, the Directors have
carried out a detailed review of the cash flow forecast of the Group
covering a period of not less than twelve months from the end of the
reporting period based on certain underlying assumptions including
(i) the Group succeeding in taking measures to tighten cost control;
(i) two indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group being able
to formulate pre-restructuring plans to resolve the debt positions;
(iii) the Group succeeding in negotiating with its convertible loan
holder and bank to restructure and/or refinance its borrowings, and
secure necessary facilities to meet the Group’s working capital and
financial requirements in the near future; (iv) the Directors succeeding
in strengthening the capital base of the Company including but not
limited to, seeking new investment and business opportunities; (v)
the shareholder of the Company, Morris Capital Limited, providing
financial support to the Group to enable the Group to continue as a
going concern and to settle its liabilities as and when they fall due;
(vi) the Group succeeding in re-negotiating the repayment schedules
with certain of its debtors and endeavouring to request them to repay
the trade receivables, other receivables and amounts due from related
companies in accordance with the repayment schedules agreed
with them; and (vii) the Company succeeding in proceeding with
and completing the Possible Share Subscription with the Potential
Subscriber. Taking into account the above assumptions, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
within the twelve months from 31 December 2021. The Directors
will continue to negotiate with banks and other financiers, financial
institutions and potentially interested investors with the view to
obtaining new funding whether by way of equity or debt financing
to improve the Company's financial position and/or liquidity, with the
objective of removing the emphasis of matter on going concern.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE D (&)

During the audit process, the audit committee discussed with the
management during which the management presented the financial
highlights and conveyed the key audit matters expressed by the
auditors. After considering the circumstances surrounding the
key audit matters and the management’s presentation, the audit
committee concurred with the management’s judgments regarding
the going concern basis of the financial statements.

MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN
RELATION TO THE DISPOSAL OF THE ENTIRE
SHARE CAPITAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 8 January 2021, Morris International Group Limited (the
“Vendor"”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Morris Capital Limited (the “Purchaser”), a connected person of
the Company, entered into the share purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the Vendor agreed to sell, and the Purchaser agreed to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Masia Investment Limited
(the "Disposal Company”), for the aggregate consideration of
US$5.513 million (approximately RMB36 million). Further, it is agreed
between the Vendor and the Purchaser that the Purchaser shall take
the Disposal Company with the current liabilities of the Disposal
Group. The transaction was completed on 9 March 2021. Further
details of the disposal of the Disposal Company were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 8 January 2021 and 9 March
2021 and the circular of the Company dated 18 February 2021.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

On 13 April 2021, the Company changed its English name from
“Morris Holdings Limited” to “Morris Home Holdings Limited”
and adopted the Chinese name "H AKX EZER B R A 7" as its
dual foreign name to replace its former Chinese name “FHRE A
FfRAF]" (the “Change of Company Name”). Further details of the
Change of Company Name were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 24 February 2021, 1 April 2021 and 26 May 2021
and the circular of the Company dated 10 March 2021. The Change
of Company Name was registered with Hong Kong Companies
Registry on 13 May 2021. Following the Change of Company Name
becoming effective, the stock short name of the Company has
changed from “MORRIS HOLD" in English and “RAZERE" in Chinese
to “MORRIS HOME" in English and “ZHAZ/E " in Chinese with effect
from 9:00 a.m. on 1 June 2021. The Company also adopted a new
company logo with effect from 1 June 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWRD T (R)

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

The management of the Group believes that talent is the basis
for long-term development of enterprises. The Group targets to
enhance its corporate image through building up and solidifying the
Company’s brand name. With the Five Hearts of Morris: ambition,
confidence, determination, perseverance and loyalty, as core values,
the Group targets to establish a distinctive corporate culture. Through
regular trainings and promotion of its corporate culture, the Group
provides its staff with opportunities for personal growth and enhances
the employees’ sense of belonging to the Group. In addition,
the Group provides its employees with competitive remuneration
packages and various benefits in line with industry practice. At the
same time, the Group strives to create a good working environment,
and cultivates teamwork spirit among employees. The Group carries
out performance evaluation quarterly, and conducts “Morris Artisans”
evaluations, aiming at elevating the morale of the Group's technicians.
The Group regularly reviews human resources policies to ensure that
the policies align with market practice and comply with regulatory
requirements. As of 31 December 2021, the Group employed 1,070
employees (31 December 2020: 1,494 employees). The total annual
salary and related costs (excluding directors’ remuneration) for 2021
were approximately RMB79.8 million (2020: RMB60.6 million).

The Company operates a share option scheme which allows the
Company to grant options to eligible persons as rewards for their
contributions to the Group. The share option scheme has been
adopted by the Company on 10 December 2016. No share options
were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the share
option scheme during the period from 12 January 2017, the date on
which the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Date”), up to 31 December 2021 and there were no outstanding
share options under the share option scheme as at 31 December
2021 and the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@ On 19 January 2022, Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products Co., Ltd.
and Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co., Ltd. (collectively, the
“Relevant Subsidiaries”), both being indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group, filed pre-restructuring applications
with the People’s Court of Haining City (the “Court”) to request
the Court to allow the Relevant Subsidiaries to formulate pre-
restructuring plans to resolve their debt positions. Further details
were set out in the announcements of the Company dated 19
January 2022.

(b) On 25 February 2022, the Company and the placing agent
entered into the placing agreement pursuant to which the
Company appointed the placing agent to place, subject to
the fulfillment of the conditions precedent to the placing, a
maximum of 200,000,000 placing shares to not less than six
independent placees at a price of HK$0.12 per placing share.
The placing was completed on 23 March 2022. Further details
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 25
February 2022, 28 February 2022 and 23 March 2022.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
TEABRRTEERER

The followings are part of the key risks and uncertainties identified by
the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which may
not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC RISK

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
so as to ensure sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions (when applicable) to

meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term. As at 31

December 2021, the Group had no significant capital commitment.

Foreign currency risk

Revenue from major customers is mainly from the U.S. while the
production facilities of the Group are mainly operates in the PRC.
Accordingly, most of the sales are denominated in U.S. dollar while
the costs arising from its operations are generally settled in RMB. As
a result, fluctuations in the value of U.S. dollars against RMB could
adversely affect the financial results of the Group. During 2021, the
Group did not experience any material difficulties or impacts on its
operations or liquidity as a result of currency exchange fluctuation.

The Group used foreign exchange contract for hedging purposes
during 2021 and no hedging instruments outstanding as at 31
December 2021 (2020: approximately RMB313,000). The Group will
continue to monitor closely the exchange rate risk arising from its
existing operations and new investments in the future. The Group will
further implement the necessary hedging arrangement to mitigate
any significant foreign exchange risk when and if appropriate.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)
TERBRIEERE(E)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
Credit evaluations are performed on all credit customers taking
into account the customer’s payment history and current ability to
pay, any information specific to the customer and the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The credit period is
generally one to two months, extending up to three to four months
for major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Impairment losses are recorded for those overdue balances where
there is objective evidence of impairment.

The Group has concentration risk in respect of trade receivables
due from the Group’s five largest customers who accounted
for approximately 52.6% and 76.5% of the Group’s total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 respectively. The credit
risk exposure to trade receivables balance has been and will continue
to be monitored by the Group on an ongoing basis.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The Group
monitors the interest rate exposure on a continuous basis and adjusts
the portfolio of bank deposits and borrowings where necessary.

Economy of U.S. market

As the majority of the Group’s revenue is derived from the U.S., its
results of operations and financial condition therefore depend on the
U.S. economy. The Group's profitability and business growth are
affected by the uncertainty of macroeconomic conditions and
uncertain economic outlook and political conditions in U.S..

The U.S. economy faces challenges such as budget deficits, public
debt, lack of labor market dynamism and change in political instability.
Moreover, the change of trade policies of the United States with
China in recent years have brought adverse impact to the business
of the Group. It remains uncertain how Sino-US trade policies will
develop since the inauguration of the new US administration in
January 2021.

The Group has evaluated the business risk from the change in trade

policies of U.S. with China, and would explore different means to
mitigate such risks stemming therefrom.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
DEEARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to protect the interests of its Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Board has reviewed the
Company's corporate governance practices and is satisfied that save as
disclosed below, the Company has complied with all code provisions
("Code Provisions”) and, where applicable, the recommended
best practices of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate
Governance Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
during the year and up to the date of this report.

According to Code Provision A.2.1 (subsequently rearranged and
renumbered as C.2.1) of the Corporate Governance Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The Company
has appointed Mr. Zou Gebing as both the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the
roles of the chairman and chief executive officer in the same individual
would enable the Company to achieve higher responsiveness,
efficiency and effectiveness when formulating business strategies
and executing business plans. The Board believes that the balance of
power and authority is sufficiently maintained by the operation of the
senior management and the Board, which comprises experienced and
high-calibre individuals. The Board currently comprises four executive
Directors (including Mr. Zou Gebing) and three independent non-
executive Directors and therefore has a fairly strong independence
element in its composition. The Board will nevertheless review the
structure and composition of the Board from time to time in light
of prevailing circumstances, in order to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance practices of the Company.

Code Provision C.1.2 (subsequently rearranged and renumbered as
D.1.2) of the Corporate Governance Code provides that management
should provide members of the board with monthly updates giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient details to enable the board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and
Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules. Although the management of the
Company did not provide a regular monthly update to the members
of the Board, the management keeps providing information and
updates to the members of the Board as and when appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (K)

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance standard,
comply with regulatory requirements and meet the growing

expectations of shareholders and investors of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the Company
for Directors’ securities transactions. The Company has made specific
enquiry with its incumbent Directors regarding compliance with the
Model Code during the Reporting Period, and they all confirmed that
they had fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout

the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management, businesses,
strategic directions and financial performance of the Group. The
Board holds regular meetings to discuss the Group’s businesses and
operations. All important issues are discussed in a timely manner. The
Board delegates to the management the daily operations of the Group
under the directions set out by the management and the Board. The
Board has established various committees and has delegated to the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination
Committee of the Board (collectively, the “Board Committees”)
various duties. All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles

in accordance with their respective terms of reference.

Pursuant to the internal guidelines of the Group, the Board shall meet
at least four times a year. Additional board meetings will be held
when warranted. The Directors at all times have full and timely access
to information of the Group. There is a procedure for Directors to
seek independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by

them at the expense of the Company, as appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (K)

Directors receive at least 14 days prior written notice of a regular
meeting and may propose matters for discussion to be included in the
agenda. The minutes of Board meetings are prepared by the company
secretary with details of the decisions reached, any concerns raised
and dissenting views expressed. Copies of the final versions of Board
minutes are sent to the Directors for their information and records.
The draft minutes are sent to all Directors within a reasonable time
after each meeting for their comments before being formally signed.
The signed minutes are kept in safe custody by the company secretary
and are available for inspection by the Directors.

Insurance coverage in respect of Directors’ and officers’ liability has

been arranged by the Company.

As of the date of this report, the composition of the Board is as
follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZOU Gebing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. SHEN Zhidong

Mr. WU Yueming

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Haifeng

Mr. CHU Guodi

Ms. WU Weixia (appointed on 14 April 2022)

Mr. TAN Tianhong (appointed on 14 April 2022)
Ms. ZHAO Hongyan (appointed on 14 April 2022)

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of Directors

and Senior Management” on pages 8 to 14 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (K)

During the Reporting Period, the attendance of the individual

Directors at the meetings is set out below:

RBEHRE - REELE

P
EEAE

R :

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend during the Reporting Period
REBEHBLE/ FERERENEERY

Remuneration Nomination Audit General
Committee Committee Committee Board Meeting
Name of Director BEfHR ¥MZES R2ZE® ENZES -1 REAE
Executive Directors gz
Mr. Zou Gebing PRERE N/A TE R N/A TR NA TEF 8/8 31
Mr. Zeng Jin Le%s
(resigned on 8 June 2021) (R202156ABREHT) N/A TER N/A TER N/A TR 414 22
Mr. Wu Yueming RAMEE NA NER N/A NEA N/A NER 8/8 33
Mr. Shen Zhidong TEREE N/A T iER NA 1@ NA TiER 8/8 31
Independent non-executive Directors B EH1TES
Mr. Liu Haifeng el 11 22 M 858 33
Mr. Chu Guodi EEREE 11 22 22 8/8 313
Mr. Qian Jun FRLE
(resigned on 14 April 2022) (R202E4R14BFHE) 11 22 Wy 8/8 3R
Ms. Wu Weixia REELT
(appointed on 14 April 2022) (R02EAR14BERT) 00 000 000 00 000
Mr. Tan Tianhong BRI LS
(appointed on 14 April 2022) (R02EAR14BERT) 00 000 000 00 000
Ms. Zhao Hongyan HiETT
(appointed on 14 April 2022) (R02EAR14BERT) 00 000 000 00 000
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (K)

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Company to protect the overall interests
of the Shareholders and the Company.

They serve actively on the Board and Board Committees to
provide their independent and objective views. In compliance with
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed at least three independent non-executive Directors,
representing more than one-third of the Board. At least one of the
independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial management expertise

as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Board must satisfy itself that an independent non-executive
Director does not have any material relationship with the Group.
The Board is guided by the criteria of independence as set out in the
Listing Rules in determining the independence of Directors.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other, save as disclosed under
the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report. The Company has received annual confirmation
of independence from all the independent non-executive Directors
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the
view that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent

in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Ms. Wu Weixia was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 14 April 2022, replacing Mr. Qian Jun’s directorship in the
Company. Mr. Tan Tianhong and Ms. Zhao Hongyan were appointed
as the independent non-executive Directors on 14 April 2022. Each of
Ms. Wu, Mr. Tan and Ms. Zhao will retire and offer himself/herself for
re-election as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
at the coming annual general meeting of the Company held on 30
June 2022. Please refer to “Corporate Governance Practices” on
pages 27 to 28 of this report for further details.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (K)

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

All Directors are provided with timely updates on the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition,
the Company arranges for and provides continuous professional
development training and relevant materials to the Directors to help
ensure they are apprised of the latest changes in the commercial,
legal and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts
its business and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director. The Directors have
provided to the Company their record of continuous professional
development training, and they have participated in training activities

in the following manner:

1. Reading materials on Directors’ duties, compliance issues for
listed companies and/or legal and regulatory requirements;

2. Reading materials on corporate governance and financial

reporting; and
3. Reading materials on risk management and internal control.

Dividend policy

On 10 December 2018, the Company adopted a new dividend policy
that may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company, provided that the Group records a profit after tax and
that the declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. The Company intends to pay out
an annual dividend payment at a payout ratio of not less than 30%
of the Group’s consolidated net profit after tax for the then financial
year after taking into consideration of certain factors stated in the

Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2018.
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Board Diversity Policy (“Diversity Policy”)

The Company adopted a policy of having a diversity in the
composition of Board members so as to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against selection criteria, having regard for the benefits

of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Diversity Policy and, from time to time, review the Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness.

Nomination Policy

The Board is responsible for selection and appointment of Directors.
The Nomination Policy of the Board (the “Nomination Policy”)
sets out the criteria, process and procedures for the Nomination
Committee to recommend suitable candidates for directorship with
a view to ensuring that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the

Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee shall consider a number of factors in
making nominations, including but not limited to the skills and
experience of the candidate, the commitment that the candidate
is expected to devote to the Board and the competence of the
candidate in satisfying relevant legal and regulatory requirements. The
Company adopted the Diversity Policy as stated in the previous section
for achieving diversity on the Board with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs. The candidate to be nominated as
an INED must satisfy the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.
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If the Nomination Committee determines that an additional or
replacement director is required, the Committee may take such
measures that it considers appropriate in connection with its
identification and evaluation of a candidate. The Nomination
Committee may propose to the Board a candidate recommended
or offered for nomination by a shareholder of the Company as a
nominee for election to the Board. On making recommendation, the
Nomination Committee may submit the candidate’s personal profile to
the Board for consideration. The Board may appoint the candidate(s) as
director(s) to fill a casual vacancy(ies) or as an addition to the Board or
recommend such candidate to shareholders for election or re-election

(where appropriate) at the general meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board Committees are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock

Exchange and are available to the Shareholders upon request.

All members of each Board Committee are independent non-

executive Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process, internal control
system and risk management system of the Group, to oversee the
audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities as

assigned by the Board.
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Members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Liu Haifeng, Mr. Chu
Guodi, Ms. Wu Weixia, Mr. Tan Tianhong and Ms. Zhao Hongyan.
They are all independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Wu Weixia
currently serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee, replacing
Mr. Qian Jun, who resigned on 14 April 2022.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Audit Committee on 10 May 2022,
the Audit Committee reviewed, among other things, the audited
financial statements for 2021 with recommendations to the Board
for approval and discussed with the management and the external
auditors the accounting policies and practices which may affect the
Group, the report prepared by the external auditors covering major
findings in the course of the audit and the accounting and financial
reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to establish and review the policy and structure of
the remuneration for the Directors and senior management and
make recommendations on the remuneration packages of individual
Directors and senior management and on other employee benefit

arrangements.

The Remuneration Committee consists of all the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Guodi, Mr. Liu Haifeng, Ms. Wu
Weixia, Mr. Tan Tianhong and Ms. Zhao Hongyan. Mr. Tan Tianhong
currently serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee has assessed the performance of the
Directors and senior management of the Company, and reviewed and
recommended to the Board the remuneration policy and structure

relating to the Directors and senior management of the Company.
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The remuneration for the Directors and senior management comprises
basic salary, retirement benefits and discretionary bonus. Details of
the amount of emoluments of Directors paid for 2021 are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointments of the Directors, to
assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors,

to take up references and to consider related matters.

The Nomination Committee consists of all the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Guodi, Mr. Liu Haifeng, Ms. Wu
Weixia, Mr. Tan Tianhong and Ms. Zhao Hongyan. Ms. Zhao Hongyan

currently serves as the chairlady of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
requirements of the business of the Group and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment
agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection

process when necessary.

Further, pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee, when reviewing the
composition of the Board, will have regard to the diversity of
the Board, which includes gender, age, cultural and educational
background, length of service, skills, knowledge and professional
experience of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the

benefits of diversity of Board members.
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The Nomination Committee has reviewed the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the structure, size and composition of the
Board and assessed independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, namely:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(i)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (including in relation to securities trading)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v)  to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report in the Company’s annual report.

The Board will continue to review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and legal and regulatory
compliance, training and continuous professional development
participations of the Directors, as well as the Company’s compliance

with the Corporate Governance Code.
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AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

During 2021, the total fees paid/payable in respect of services
provided by the Group’s external auditors are set out below:

Z BB

R20214F » REBINEZ A B E TR #
R ES N, RES N EERNT

2021
20214F
RMB'000
ARBFT
Audit and audit related services Fit REFHEARS 1,304
Non-audit services: Taxation and other TR - B R E M ERS
professional services 204
1,508
COMPANY SECRETARY NAIMWE
The company secretary is responsible for handling company secretarial ARIWEAEREARMEEET (RIFEST
matters including compliance with the companies ordinance. The ~ AFMEH) o NA T KA BIFE BIOEHE T

company secretary of the Company is Mr. Lam Hoi Lun. Mr. Lam has
received no less than 15 hours of professional training in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board, supported by the finance and accounting department,
is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of
the Group that give a true and fair view. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants have been
adopted. Appropriate accounting policies have also been used and
applied consistently. The appropriateness of the preparation of the
Company's consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis largely depends upon the outcome of the underlying assumptions
as detailed in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
which in particular include: (i) cost control tightening measures; (ii)
pre-restructuring of two subsidiaries; (iii) negotiation with convertible
loan holder and bank; (iv) alternatives to strengthen the capital base;
and (v) financial support from the ultimate holding company; (vi) re-
negotiation with debtors; and (vii) successful completion of the share
subscription contemplated by the memorandum of understanding
dated 22 April 2022. However, the eventual outcome of the plans and
measures described above are inherently uncertain. The conditions
stated in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, including
the net loss, net current liabilities, net liabilities, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, lease liabilities, convertible loan, cash
and cash equivalents of the Group, indicate the existence of material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubts about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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Our auditor do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of the
Independent Auditors’ Report, our auditors have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all
other respects, our auditor is of the opinion that the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance. Save as
disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Directors have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis, taking
into consideration the various factors set out in the section headed
"The views of the management and the Audit Committee on the
disclaimer of opinion relating to going concern” on page 22 of this
annual report.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is
included in the Report of the Independent Auditors on page 72 of this
annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems, and the
Board has the responsibility to review and monitor the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems at least
annually covering material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, to ensure that the systems in place are
adequate and effective. The Group adopts a risk management system
which manages the risk associated with its business and operations.
The system comprises the following phases:

Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective

communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.
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The Company has in place an internal control system which is

compatible with The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The COSO

framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding

effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial

reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The

five key components of the COSO framework are shown as follows:

Control

Environment:

Risk Assessment:

Control Activities:

Information and

Communication:

Monitoring:

A set of standards, processes and structures
that provide the basis for carrying out internal

control across the Group.

A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how

risks should be managed.

Action established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives
are carried out.

Internal and external communication to provide
the Group with the information needed to carry

out day-to-day controls.

Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of internal control is

present and functioning.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are,
however, designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has conducted an annual review on whether there is a
need for an internal audit department. Given the Group’s relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit department, the
Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and for

reviewing its effectiveness.

During the Reporting Period, the Company engaged an external
independent adviser with professional staff in possession of relevant
expertise to conduct an independent review of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group in order to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The review plan has been
approved by the Board and the Audit Committee. The Board and the
Audit Committee had also reviewed the resources, staff qualifications
and experience and training programs of the external independent
adviser and considered they are adequate and sufficient.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of
the relevant obligations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) and the Listing
Rules.
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In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures. Certain
reasonable measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure

requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

1. The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their

obligations to preserve confidentiality.

2. Confidentiality covenants will be in place when the Group

enters into significant negotiations.

In addition, all employees are required to strictly adhere to the rules
and regulations regarding the management of inside information,
including that all employees who, because of his/her office or
employment, is likely to be in possession of inside information in
relation to the Company, are required to comply with the securities
transaction rules adopted by the Company which are on terms no less

exacting than those required under the Listing Rules.

The Board and the Audit Committee had reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report

and believes that the existing systems are adequate and effective.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for the
Shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. Subject to
provisions of the applicable laws in the Cayman Islands and the Listing
Rules, the Articles require that an annual general meeting (“AGM")
of the Company to be held each year and at the venue as determined
by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM, is called an
extraordinary meeting.

According to the Articles, any one or more members holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT GENERAL
MEETING

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her/its proposal
(the “Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed contact information to
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong. The
identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will be verified
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
confirmation by the Company’s branch share registrar that the
request is proper and in order and made by a Shareholder, the Board
will determine in its sole discretion whether the Proposal may be

included in the agenda for the general meeting.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available and
the Company has an investor relationship personnel to attend to
enquiries from the Shareholders. Details of the contact person are set

out below:

Name: Mr. Xu Jing

Telephone:  (852) 2106 3218

Email: benson.xu@morrishome.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company and/or by sending them to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at the following
correspondence address and addressing to the Board:

Address: Room 708-709, Laford Centre, 838 Lai Chi Kok Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Hong Kong

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings,
share transfer, share registration and payment of dividend to Tricor
Investor Services Limited (the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong). Contact details of Tricor Investor Services Limited are set

out below:

Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board and senior management maintain a continuing dialogue
with the Shareholders and investors through various channels
including the Company’s AGM to answer Shareholders’ questions.
The chairman and other members of the Board are present at the
AGM. The annual report and AGM circular is distributed to all the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels with
investors to update them with the latest business development and
financial performance including the AGM, the publication of annual
reports, announcements and circulars on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in order to maintain a high level of

transparency.

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum of
association on 10 December 2016 and amended and restated articles
of association on the Listing Date.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

The Directors present this annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Company for 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of business performance of the Group, the Group’s
business prospect and the financial key performance indicators during
2021 are set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on page 5, pages 6 to 7 and pages 15 to 24 respectively of this
annual report. The content is part of this directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING
THE COMPANY

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group during the
Reporting Period is set out in the section headed “Principal Risks and
Uncertainties” on pages 25 to 26 of this annual report. The content is

part of this directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. Being manufacturing and trading companies in the PRC,
the Group is subject to various environmental laws and regulations
set by the PRC national, provincial and municipal governments.
Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations. During 2021, the Group has complied
with relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on
the operations of the Group. Further, any changes in applicable
laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant

employees and relevant operation units from time to time.

A report on the environmental, social and governance aspects is
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules will
be published on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites
as close as possible to, and in any event no later than three months

after, the publication of the Company’s annual report.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as the holding company of the Group and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for 2021 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
73 to 74 of this annual report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during 2021 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 27 to the

Company’s financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Restricted Share Award
Scheme” below, the Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase,
sell or redeem any of the listed securities of the Company during
2021.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution (31 December 2020: Nil).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Five year financial summary are set in the section headed “Five Year
Financial Summary” on page 212 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during 2021 and up to the date of this annual report

were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZOU Gebing (Chairman and CEO)

Mr. ZENG Jin (resigned on 8 June 2021)
Mr. SHEN Zhidong

Mr. WU Yueming

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Haifeng

Mr. CHU Guodi
Mr. QIAN Jun resigned on 14 April 2022)
Ms. WU Weixia appointed on 14 April 2022)

Mr. TAN Tianhong
Ms. ZHAO Hongyan

(
(
(appointed on 14 April 2022)

(appointed on 14 April 2022)

In accordance with paragraph 83(3) of the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of shareholders after his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and

shall then be eligible for re-election.
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Further, pursuant to paragraph 84(1) of the Articles, one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an AGM
at least once every three years and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election for the forthcoming year. According to paragraph 84(2) of
the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board pursuant to Article
83(3) shall not be taken into account in determining which particular
Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation.
Details of the re-electing directors at the forthcoming AGM will be set

out in the Company'’s circular to be dispatched to the Shareholders.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date or the date of appointment, unless terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the

other expiring at the end of the initial term.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company. There is no specific term
or proposed length of service for the independent non-executive
Directors under the letters of appointment. They are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM of the Company at
least once every three years and until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either the Company or the

respective independent non-executive Director.

No Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed under the section headed ”“Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” and the
related party transactions as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or a connected entity of a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2021 or at any time

during 2021.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
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pursuant to the Model Code, are set out below: FR -
(i) The Company (i) ZA&2QF
Number of Approximate
Name of Director/ securities percentage of
chief executive Nature of Interest (Note 1) shareholding
EHHEE
EE BRTBRASHS EENE (Bf7E1) HRESAE D
Mr. Zou Gebing (Note 2) Interest of controlled 750,000,000 shares (L) 75%

P& Fe e A (HfeE2)

corporation

SRl
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Note 1: The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Note 2:  Morris Capital Limited (“Morris Capital”) is owned as to 85% by Mr.
Zou Gebing. Under the SFO, Mr. Zou Gebing will therefore be deemed,
or taken to be, interested in the same number of Shares in which Morris
Capital is interested.

(ii) Morris Capital (Note 1)

MfaE1 . FRILKRRZBALRZERMD LT

2
=

Mizt2 : RABEAERAF(REER])BHIH
EREHAS%  RIEES KRB
Bl - BIE I AN E LA B E 1E
RRAEAEARROREHE KRG
AR

(i) FREARPIEED

Number of Approximate

securities percentage of

Name of director/chief executive Nature of Interest (Note 2) shareholding
BEHE

EE BETBAEHRS EEME (M5E2) ERESNEDL

Mr. Zou Gebing Beneficial owner 85 shares of 85%
AMEELE BE=EBA US$1 each (L)
85I A E B
1ETTHIRAD (L)

Note 1: Morris Capital holds more than 50% of the Shares. Therefore, Morris
Capital is the holding company and an associated corporation of the
Company.

Note 2: The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives of
the Company had any other personal, family, corporate and other
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code as at 31 December 2021.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than the

Directors or the chief executive of the Company) have interests or

short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the

SFO:

FEREER
2021128310 U FAL(KRRQFE
e EZITHABBRIN R G @RS
FR R 7B Y AR Bl IR 1R 55 5 K B E 5

F336EFERE LM ERIORE
Number of Percentage of

Shares/underlying Shares of

Shares held the Company

Shareholders Nature of interest (Note 1) in issue
Frisik 13 B RHEE EAEARE BT

B3R EmtE (F5E1) BB BE DL

Morris Capital (Note 2) Beneficial owner 750,000,000 shares (L) 75% (L)

RBEAR(MIFE2) EmEAA 750,000,0000% (L)

Wu Xiangfei (Note 3) Interest of spouse 750,000,000 shares (L) 75% (L)

SRR (FizE3) Fofd s 750,000,0008%(L)

Morris ESOP (Note 4) Trustee 70,010,000 shares (L) 7% (L)

Morris ESOP(Fff7+4) XFEA 70,010,0008%(L)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

52

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Morris Capital is owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou Gebing and 15% by Ms. Wu
Xiangfei.

Ms. Wu Xiangfei is the spouse of Mr. Zou Gebing. Under the SFO, Ms. Wu
Xiangfei will therefore be deemed, or taken to be, interested in the same
number of Shares in which Mr. Zou Gebing is interested.

These shares are held by Morris ESOP Development Limited (“Morris ESOP"),
which is wholly owned by The Core Trust Company Limited (as trustee of
the Award Scheme), for the benefit of certain participants eligible under and
pursuant to the term of the restricted share award scheme of the Company (the
“Award Scheme") as adopted by the Board on 29 August 2019. For further
details, please refer to the announcement made by Company on 29 August
2019 and the paragraph headed “Restricted Share Award Scheme” above in
this report.
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Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other person (other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares and/
or underlying Shares of the Company which fell to be disclosed to
the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31
December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business were

entered into or existed during 2021.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group is well aware of the importance of incentivising and
retaining its employees. The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages to its employees and makes contributions to social security
insurance funds (including pension plans, medical insurance, work-
related injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity
insurance) and housing fund for its employees. The Remuneration
Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy
and remuneration package of the Directors and chief executive of
the Group, having regard to the Group’s overall operating results,

individual performance and comparable market practices.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Restricted Share Award Scheme (the “Award Scheme”) was
adopted by the Board on 29 August 2019 (the “Adoption Date”)
as an incentive to retain and encourage employees for the continual
operation and development of the Group. Pursuant to the terms of
the rules and trust deed of the Award Scheme, the trustee of the
Award Scheme did not acquire any Shares during the period under
review. As at 31 December 2021, 75,812,000 Shares acquired under
the Award Scheme were deemed to be held in treasury, representing
7.58% of the Shares in issue as at 31 December 2021.
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Details of the remuneration of the Directors for 2021 are set out in

note 8 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

There were no competing business of which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December
2021 or at any time during 2021.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Morris Capital, Mr. Zou Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei (each
a “"Non-Compete Covenantor”) has entered into a deed of non-
competition (“"Deed of Non-competition”) dated 10 December
2016 with the Company, to the effect that each of them will not
directly or indirectly participate in, or hold any right or interest, or
otherwise be involved in any business which may be in competition

with the business of the Group from time to time.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of the Non-
Compete Covenantors in respect of their compliance with the non-
competition undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition during
2021.

The independent non-executive Directors also reviewed the Non-
Compete Covenantors’ compliance with the non-competition
undertakings. The independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that the Non-Compete Covenantors were not in breach of the non-

competition undertakings during 2021.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

During 2021, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing
connected transactions, details of which are set out below:

The Lease Agreements with Morris PRC

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co., Ltd (formerly known as “Haining
Gelin Furniture Co., Ltd.”), (“Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home"),
Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Apollo
Leather Products”), Haining Morris Home Gallery Co., Ltd. (“Haining
Morris Home Gallery”), and Haining Morris International Home
Furnishings Co., Ltd. (“Haining Morris International”), each
as tenant entered into the lease agreements with Morris PRC as
landlord on 1 January 2016 for the lease of various premises located
in Haining, Zhejiang Province, PRC for factory, direct sale store and
office use. However, as the area of leased properties was insufficient
to meet the production requirements of the Group, Zhejiang Morris
Fashion Home, Haining Morris Home Gallery and Haining Morris
International (each as tenant) entered into lease agreements with
Morris PRC (as landlord) on 17 March 2017 for the lease of leased
properties located in Haining, Zhejiang Province, PRC for factory,
exhibition hall, dormitory, canteens, office and research and
development center use for a term of three years commencing from
17 March 2017 and expiring on 16 March 2020. The major terms of
the lease agreements are as follows:

‘,

B NFBERERS

FRRFEBAERS

R2021F - AEBENFHRRBEFERS
~HIBESIINTE -

BREFEHEE RS

HIRARSKEBRA T (AIHE =S
MREBERAA]) ([HIFERKER
Bl IR ERERMBRA T
IMBEEERR])  BEERITHRKE
BRAGB(BERRHRRE) MEER
AERREERAR(EERRER]) (&
BYEAAR)EEAPE(ERZ%EE)N2016
FIRATEDRISAEMNFRENTIE 8%
THZERERE BEEERFAEAEN
VT HE R - A - ARHEHEDSE
EEELZREAEENEERR O MIF
ARERRE  SERTHRREREER
AEBR(ZEEEANER) BERFE(EAR
ET)MN2017F38178 D RIS E R F
BEWIE8EMIERE  EE BS R
B RAERFERLAROEEYER]
VHEWRE  HEE2017F3/8178RE
2020563 A16HIERAI=5F - HEWHZEMNE
BEFAT

Rent per

Leased area annum

(sg. m.) (RMB)

Lease agreements  Term Tenant Landlord HEEE F£4

HE S HIRR BE =z (FHK) (AR®T)

Property A 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 ~ Zhejiang Apollo Leather Morris PRC 40,226.08  2,896,277.76

Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) Products

MEARERE 20165 1A1BZ2026F1A18  HIMEER &M RAT

(BHEEEMA)
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Rent per
Leased area annum
(sg. m.) (RMB)
Lease agreements Term Tenant Landlord HE@E F£4
HE S IR BE EEd (F7K) (AR®T)
Property B Lease 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home - Morris PRC 19,990.35  1,439,305.20
Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Gelin Furniture”)
ELTER YT 2016F1A1RE20265 118 HIRRKHERE RAHE
(BEEEME) (ARl ER/MKA])
Property C Lease 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 39,312.00  2,830,464.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as "Haining
Morris Home Gallery
Furniture”)
NECHERZ 016F1A1RE20265F1H1H HIRARHERE RAHE
(RHEEEME) (A EERTERRE])
Property D Lease 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home  Morris PRC 1,000.00 72,000.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris International”)
MmEDEA R 016F1A1HE2026F1 A1 IRBHHEE RETE
(BEEEMA) (AR EERAER )
Property E Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home - Morris PRC 4,608.00 331,776.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as "Haining
Morris International”)
WEEEERS 201743R178F202063 8168 HIEREHKE RATH
(BREEREMA) (MBI ERAER])
Property F Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 9,300.00 669,600.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Gelin Furniture”)
mEFRERE 201743170 E202063 8168 HIIRRBHKE RATH

(BEERMA) (AR EER/MKA])
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EEERE(E)
Rent per
Leased area annum
(sg. m.) (RMB)
Lease agreements Term Tenant Landlord HE@E £
HE S IR BE EEd (F7K) (AR®T)
Property G Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 40,474.00  2,914,128.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gallery
Furniture”)
WG EH 2017F3A1785202063A168 HMIRAKHERE RATH
(BEERMA) (A EERTERRE])
Property H Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 ~ Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home  Morris PRC 20,532.00  1,478,304.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gallery
Furniture”)
WEHEERS 2017F3A178%202063A168 MIRAKHERE RATH
(BEEREMA) (AIRBIEERDERKE])
Property | Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 19,723.00  1,420,056.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Gelin Furniture”)
MEBE RS 2017F3A1785202063A168 MIRAKHERE RAHE
(BEERMA) (AR EERMKA])
Property J Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home  Morris PRC 6,400.00 460,800.00

Agreement

EILECYE

The aggregated annual caps of the lease agreements for the years
ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 were originally fixed
at RMB15 million, RMB15 million, RMB15 million and RMB15 million,
respectively. For further details of the lease agreement, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 17 March 2017.

(both days inclusive)

201743R178 22020434168
(RfEEEMA)

(formerly known as “Haining

Morris International”)

HIRBEHRE
(ARl S ERAER])
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On 8 July 2020, Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home entered into the
2020 Lease Renewal Agreement with Morris PRC (as modified by the
supplemental agreement dated 21 August 2020) to renew the leases
of the 2020 Leased Properties for three years from 17 March 2020 to
16 March 2023, to set out the increased annual rents from the date
of signing of the 2020 Lease Agreements (subject to the obtaining
of approval from the Independent Shareholders) and to revise
the annual caps of the lease agreements for the years ending 31
December 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 to become RMB 16,020,000,
RMB21,622,000, RMB21,622,000 and RMB10,194,000 (on the basis
that the 2020 Lease Agreements shall end on 16 March 2023).

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home is a company established in the
PRC with limited liability, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and the surviving entity of the merger with Haining
Morris Home Gallery and Haining Morris International. As a result
of the merger which took place on 22 October 2018, Zhejiang
Morris Fashion Home has become the tenant of all the 2017 Leased
Properties in succession of Haining Morris Home Gallery and Haining
Morris International. Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home was formerly
known as “Haining Gelin Furniture Co., Ltd.” and was renamed to its
current name on 5 September 2017.

The leases of the 2020 Leased Properties renewed under the 2020
Lease Agreements were Properties E, F, G and H, with their annual
rents increases summarized as below:

M202067A8H  MIEARHREHEE
RPBF 2005 HESEHm(KBHA
2020578 A2 1 BHM M T iR {E) - AEE
200F HEMEAH =FMHEE (852020
F3R178##£E2023F3816H) * &7 8
2020 M E W 2 ARG NeFHE (A
FIEBMREAIE)  WERERZER
HE20209F - 20214F ~ 2022 & 2023%F
NANBLEFENFE LRBEFTAARE
16,020,0007T + AR #21,622,0007T * A
R #21,622,0007T & A K # 10,194,000 7T
(LA2020F H E 1787 2023F3 A 16 B 45
REAE) o

MIRERRRERRPEKINERA
A BRARENEERE2EMNBE AR KEE
BERTERRELRBERTERA HOT

RRERBERRBIBEK BAE20175H
EYENER - MIRARFEREIENE
ERMRABFR AR - WH2017F9H5RH
FERHEERGME-

RIB2020F M EHABE2020FHEWE
MHERYEE - F - GRH - FHEEETM
LN

Old annual rents New annual rents
under 2017 Lease under 2020 Lease

Agreements Agreements

RIE20175F 1R1520205F

Lease area HEBEN HEWHZEN

Premises L/ES HEEE EfHA EMR
(sq.m.) (RMB) (RMB)

(FAAK) (ARETT) (ARHTT)

Property E YEE 4,608.00 331,776 884,736
Property F YIEF 9,300.00 669,600 1,785,600
Property G MEG 40,474.00 2,914,128 7,771,008
Property H PIZEH 20,532.00 1,478,304 3,942,144
Total: Mt 5,393,808 14,383,488
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For the avoidance of doubt, the 2016 Lease Agreements (i.e.
Properties A to D) are continuing until 1 January 2026 with the
annual rents for the 2016 Leased Properties being unchanged at
RMB7,238,046.96, while the leases of Properties | and J were allowed
to lapse by mutual agreement at the end of the three-year period
of the 2017 Lease Agreements on 16 March 2020. For further
details of the renewal of the lease agreements, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 8 July 2020 and 21 August
2020.

As the entire issued share capital of Morris PRC is owned by Mr. Zou
Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei, Morris PRC is, accordingly, an associate
of Mr. Zou Gebing and is therefore a connected person of the
Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios with respect
to the Revised Annual Caps is more than 5%, the 2020 Lease
Renewal Agreement and the Revised Annual Caps are subject to the
annual review, annual reporting, announcement, circular (including
independent financial advice) and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2020 Lease Renewal Agreement and the Revised Annual Caps
are approved by the Independent Shareholders at the EGM on 23
September 2020. Upon the obtaining of Independent Shareholders
approval, the 2020 Lease Agreements were entered into on 23
September 2020 with the rental increases for Properties E, F, G and H
taking effect on 23 September 2020.

REPERR - 2016FHEHZE BIMEAR
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The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors who have
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into: (a) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Company; (b) on normal
commercial terms; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing such transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and

in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Company in this annual report in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has

been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The corporation governance report of the Group during the Reporting
Period is set out in the sections headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 27 to 45 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During 2021, sales to the Group's five largest customers and
purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
70.8% and 64.5% of the total revenue and purchases for the year,
respectively. The Group’s largest customer accounted for around
28.0% of the total revenue for the year. The Group's largest supplier

accounted for around 20.8% of the total purchase for the year.

At no time during 2021 did a Director, a close associate of a Director
or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have an interest in
any of the Group'’s five largest customers or suppliers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
and officers arising out of corporate activities. The level of the

coverage is reviewed annually.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to share option
scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during 2021
or subsisted as at 31 December 2021.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The share options scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 10 December 2016. The Share Option
Scheme allows the Company to grant options to the following
eligible person(s) (the “Eligible person(s)”), namely, any full-
time or part-time employee of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive Director, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Director, adviser and consultant of the
Group. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to the Eligible Persons as incentives or

rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as

follows:

1. The limit on the total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes which may be adopted by the
Group from time to time pursuant to which options to subscribe
for Shares may be granted (the “Other Schemes”) must not, in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the Listing
Date (which shall be 100,000,000 Shares) unless Shareholders’
approval has been obtained, and which must not exceed 30%

of the Shares in issue from time to time.

As at 31 December 2021 and the date of this report, the total
number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 100,000,000 Shares, which represents 10% of
the issued Shares as at 31 December 2021 or the date of this

report.
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The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to an Eligible Person under the
Share Option Scheme and Other Schemes in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to
time, and provided that if approved by Shareholders in general
meeting with such Eligible Persons abstained from voting, the
Company may make further grant of options to such Eligible
Person notwithstanding that the further grant would result in
the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
Other Scheme in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of

the Shares in issue from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Board to each Eligible Person
provided that the period within which the option must be
exercised shall not be more than 10 years from the date of the
grant of option.

HK$1.00 shall be paid by the grantee to the Company by way
of consideration for the grant.

The subscription price for the Shares subject to options will be a
price determined by our Board and notified to each participant
and shall be the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant of the options, which must be a trading day; (ii)
the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of

10 years commencing on the Listing Date.
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Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
Prospectus. No share options were granted, exercised or cancelled by
the Company under the share option scheme during the period from
the listing date to 31 December 2021 and there were no outstanding
share options under the share option scheme as at 31 December
2021 and the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
although there is no restriction against such rights under the

Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required

under the Listing Rules since the Listing Date.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") was appointed as the
auditor of the Group since 21 May 2019 upon the removal of the

former auditor of the Company.

There were no changes in the auditors of the Company during the

past three years.

The consolidated financials statements of the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2021 onwards were audited by HLB, who will
retire at the AGM and a resolution for the re-appointment as the

auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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CONVERTIBLE LOAN

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into a convertible loan
agreement (“Convertible Loan Agreement”) with International
Finance Corporation (“IFC"), pursuant to which IFC agreed to lend,
and the Company agreed to borrow, a convertible loan (“Convertible
Loan”) in an aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000. Please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 5 January 2018
and 24 January 2018 for further details. Pursuant to the Convertible
Loan Agreement and as one of the conditions of disbursement,
each of Mr. Zou, Ms. Wu Xiangfei, Mr. Zou's spouse and one of the
controlling shareholders of the Company, Morris PRC, a company
owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou and as to 15% by Ms. Wu, and IFC
entered into a share retention and undertaking agreement pursuant
to which, among others, Mr. Zou has undertaken to at all times
maintain his controlling stake (being not less than 51% interests) in
the Company and Morris PRC and not to transfer his shares in Morris
Capital, one of the controlling shareholders of the Company and
owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou and 15% by Ms. Wu, or Morris PRC
if, giving effect to such transfer, Mr. Zou will not be able to maintain
his controlling stake in the Company or Morris PRC mentioned above
for so long as any part of the Convertible Loan is outstanding or any
amount is available for disbursement under the Convertible Loan
Agreement and for so long as IFC holds any equity securities of the

Company.

As a result of the suspension in trading in the shares of the
Company from 28 March 2019, the carrying amount of liability of
the convertible loan to the principal amount was adjusted and the
same was reallocated from non-current liabilities to current liabilities
in order to reflect such continuance. On 20 April 2019, 23 May
2019, 12 June 2019 and 30 September 2019, the Company entered
into four amendment agreements respectively with the lender of
the convertible loan for the agreed schedule of certain permitted
prepayments of the convertible loan. As at 31 December 2019, the
outstanding principal of the convertible loan was HK$110,967,128.
Under the agreed schedule as provided in the abovementioned
amendment agreements, the Company agreed to repay by 11
installments between 15 June 2019 and 28 December 2019.
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In December 2019, the Company’s subsidiary has pledged our

Cambodia lease rights and respective tenant lease rights to IFC. In

February 2020, the Company has received the waiver letter from

IFC, allowing the Company to not make any payments to IFC from

January to April 2020. On 29 May 2020, the Company was granted a

temporary waiver by IFC to postpone the installments from 28 January
2020 to 28 April 2020. At the same time, the repayment schedule

was renewed with an extended payment period.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a

66

On 19 January 2022, Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products Co., Ltd.
and Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co., Ltd. (collectively, the
“Relevant Subsidiaries”), both being indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group, filed pre-restructuring applications
with the People’s Court of Haining City (the “Court”) to request
the Court to allow the Relevant Subsidiaries to formulate pre-
restructuring plans to resolve their debt positions. Further details
were set out in the announcements of the Company dated 19
January 2022.

On 25 February 2022, the Company and the placing agent
entered into the placing agreement pursuant to which the
Company appointed the placing agent to place, subject to
the fulfillment of the conditions precedent to the placing, a
maximum of 200,000,000 placing shares to not less than six
independent placees at a price of HK$0.12 per placing share.
The placing was completed on 23 March 2022. Further details
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 25
February 2022, 28 February 2022 and 23 March 2022.

On 22 April 2022, the Company and a potential subscriber
("Potential Subscriber”) entered into a memorandum of
understanding, pursuant to which the Potential Subscriber
intents to subscribe for and the Company intends to allot and
issue 1,300,000,000 new shares of the Company. Further
details were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 22 April 2022.
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APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors, as
well as the management and all employees for the contribution they
have made towards the Group’s continued progress, and to thank all

the Shareholders, customers and business partners for their support.

On Behalf of the Board

ZOU Gebing

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 10 May 2022

L&l

FABHUMEBHES  ERERDE
BEHAREBESRAGEES AR
F - BEREBBENRNLHERLBH -

RREES

TERHNTEE
PR
FA& - 2022558108

RAREERERAT 2021 £ 67

S




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
B BN R S

g S il N
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB8

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS “MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED")
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Morris Home Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 73 to 211,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report,
we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements. In all other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENHRE ()

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern
basis

We draw attention to Note 2.1 in the consolidated financial
statements, which describe that the Group incurred a net loss of
approximately RMB123,402,000 during the year ended 31 December
2021 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets and total liabilities exceeded its total assets by
approximately RMB47,876,000 and RMB51,171,000 respectively.
As at the same date, the Group's aggregate interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, lease liabilities and convertible loan liability
amounted to approximately RMB64,616,000, RMB25,002,000 and
RMB69,977,000, respectively, whilst its cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately RMB13,485,000. The Group’s
convertible loan with outstanding principal amount of approximately
RMB69,977,000 as at 31 December 2021, matured and fell due
for repayment during the year ended 31 December 2021. These
outstanding principal amount and related overdue interests on these
convertible loan, amounting to approximately RMB72,875,000 in
aggregate, were not repaid as at 31 December 2021 and at the date

of this report.

The factors referred to above, along with other matters as described
in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the
existence of material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on

the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENHRE ()

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continuED)

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern
basis (Continued)

The directors have implemented certain plans and measures to
improve the Group's liquidity and financial position, which are
set out in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which is dependent on the outcomes of
these measures, which are subject to multiple uncertainties, including
(i) whether the Group is able to implement its cost control measures
to attain positive cash flows from operations; (ii) whether the Group
is successful in formulating pre-restructuring plans to resolve the debt
positions; (iii) whether the Group is able to successfully negotiate with
the convertible loan holder and bank to restructure and/or refinance
these borrowings and secure necessary credit facilities to meet the
Group's working capital and financial requirements in the near future;
(iv) whether the Directors are successful in formulating alternatives to
strengthen the capital base of the Company including the seeking of
new investment and business opportunities; (v) whether the ultimate
holding company of the Company will provide financial support to
the Group to enable the Group to continue as a going concern and
to settle the Group's liabilities as and when they fall due; (vi) whether
the Group is successful in re-negotiating the repayment schedules
with certain of its debtors and endeavouring to request them to repay
the trade receivables, other receivables and amounts due from related
companies in accordance with the repayment schedules agreed with
them; and (vii) whether the Group is successful in proceeding and
completing the subscription of shares by the Potential Subscriber in
accordance with the memorandum of understanding dated 22 April
2022 as disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22 April
2022 (the “Possible Share Subscription”).

We have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to satisfy ourselves about the appropriateness of the use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements because of the lack of detailed analyses provided
by management in relation to its plans and measures for future
actions in its going concern assessment which take into account
the uncertainty of outcome of these plans and measures and how
variability in outcome would affect the future cash flows of the
Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENHRE ()

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continuED)

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern
basis (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected
in these consolidated financial statements and we were unable
to determine whether such adjustments might have been found

necessary.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENHRE ()

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditors’
report solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. However, because of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report,
we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the

Code.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 10 May 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SeBRmkHEMRERER

Year ended 31 December 2021

E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Lk AR¥T T AREFT
Revenue WA 5 502,932 606,363
Cost of sales THER AR (403,276) (547,597)
Gross profit EF 99,656 58,766
Other income and gains E U A MU zs 5 23,894 120,508
(Allowance for)/reversal of expected W H AN GEER & Al
credit losses in respect of financial BEMTEREEREEE
assets carried at amortised cost, net (Bef#) #m - 55 (5,044) 10,231
Impairment loss on property, plantand  #1% - = N & ERE
equipment E5t8 (4,846) (12,954)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets {8 A& E R EF B (3.821) (18,084)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE KD (67,801) (97,235)
Administrative expenses TR SZ (112,686) (99,759)
Other expenses and losses HAtbh REE (27,170) (31,723)
Finance costs RhE AR 6 (22,468) (17,590)
Loss before tax BREATEE 7 (120,286) (87,840)
Income tax expenses PRSHRI ST 10 (3.116) (2,890)
Loss for the year FREE (123,402) (90,730)
Other comprehensive loss: Hitt 2 EEE :
Items that may be reclassified HIZR[BeEFT HHE
subsequently to profit or loss: PBmh)EE -
Exchange differences on translation of ~ HAE B 75 R% ALE 5,
financial statements = (2,534) (10,886)
Item that was reclassified to profit or loss: £ EB# H B F 181 EH -
Reclassification of cumulative HEWNBARRETHS
exchange fluctuation reserve upon R RETIE R B
disposal of subsidiaries (1,978) (11,885)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FREMEEEIE
net of income tax MBRATEH (4,512) (22,771)
Total comprehensive loss for the year 2 HEE5E&%E (127,914) (113,501)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

ReBmkAEMEEWER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2021
EE20214F 12H31 HIFF/E

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BfaE ARYET T ARETT
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FE(L (E518),SmFl
Owners of the Company KATIHEA A (121,508) (91,192)
Non-controlling interests SRR (1,894) 462
(123,402) (90,730)
Total comprehensive (loss)/profit fEnL2E(EE),w
attributable to: 4aza
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ YN (126,108) (113,939)
Non-controlling interests Eealiig T (1,806) 438
(127,914) (113,501)
Loss per share attributable to ordinary A2 FEEERZFE A
equity holders of the Company EhERER
Basic (RMB cents) ERARED) 12 (13.15) (9.56)
Diluted (RMB cents) BEARED) 12 (13.15) (10.01)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR AR

As at 31 December 2021
R20214F12H31H

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BfaE ARET T ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HEK&E 13 1,068 32,316
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14 7,641 23,449
Deferred tax assets BEHIBEE 25 = 4,142
Total non-current assets IEMENEERE 8,709 59,907
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 15 83,177 171,229
Trade receivables & ZRWIE 16 39,873 140,380
Prepayments, deposits and other TR 5RIE Tﬁ%&ﬁ@
receivables EU R 17 35,109 106,284
Amount due from a shareholder J’ﬂ&z—%%%*” 33(b) 322 324
Amounts due from related companies &K B8 2 B 33(0) 179,502 92,521
Pledged deposits [REEECVED N 18 14,705 70,238
Cash and cash equivalents ReENReEEY 18 13,485 35,969
Total current assets MBEELE 366,173 616,945
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade and bills payables B Z RN FIE R EN B 19 179,145 265,237
Contract liabilities aHatE 20 9,858 13,239
Other payables and accruals ﬁ’rﬂzﬁ’iﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬂg%%ﬁﬁ 20 43,320 49,766
Amounts due to related companies FERERE A T 22 27,734 46,575
Interest-bearing bank and other aJr,%ﬁEﬂ&EiJm%?k
borrowings 23 64,616 94,734
Warranty provision RSB 24 2,907 3,124
Lease liabilities HEAE 21 13,032 17,259
Derivative financial instruments PTHESBMIA 26 78 313
Convertible loan —Hﬁ‘%ﬁ?ﬁ\ 26 69,977 84,356
Income tax payables FERTFTISHE 3,382 3,749
Total current liabilities mEEEARTE 414,049 578,352
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS B (& fH) &EEFE (47,876) 38,593
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EESERRBAEE
LIABILITIES (39,167) 98,500
RAREERERAGE 2021 F38 75




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

ma AR (E)

As at 31 December 2021
R20214F12431H

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
BsE AR¥T T AREFIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBEE 25 34 123
Lease liabilities HEAE 21 11,970 21,634
Total non-current liabilities JEmEI B ERE 12,004 21,757
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) BEFE (51,171) 76,743
EQUITY e
Share capital AR 27 6,914 6,914
Reserves 1 29 (56,455) 69,653
Equity attributable to owners of the A F#HEH AEGER
Company (49,541) 76,567
Non-controlling interests IR (1,630) 176
Total equity e AR (51,171) 76,743

KEEEN2022F5 8 103 o EW K #ET)
o WHUATATRERERE

Approved by and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 10
May 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Zou Gebing Wu Yueming
5 Y 3= RAH
Director Director

EF EE

BEPHPTRERBA L F R A M S MAR R —&F D

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GABEBHE

Year ended 31 December 2021

E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
KAFEEAELRER
Exchange Non-
Share Share Other Treasury  fluctuation Reserve Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve shares reserve funds losses Total interest equity
ERRD
Bx  RGEE  HtRE  BERG e BEEE  RAEB B EBREZ  ERSE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRL ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARET:
(note29)  (note29())  (note 29(v)  (note 29(i)  (note 29(iii)  (note 29(i))
(Bi20)  (sskom)  (PsEoow))  (Psk20Gi)  (RsE20Gi))  (PREE29(v)
Asat 1 January 2020 202051518 6,914 153,071 171,385 (2,269) 11,550 49,290 (192,712) 197,229 (262) 196,967
(Lossyprofit for the year ~ FR(E1) /iF - - - - - - (91,192) (91,192) 462 (90,730)
Other comprehensive loss for FREM 2 EEE -
the year:
Exchange differenceson ~ REBIF AR
translation of financial ERER
statements - - - - (10,862) - - (10,862) (24) (10,886)
Reclassification of cumulative {1 EMEAF)E
exchange fluctuation EtipacEns
reserve upon disposal of (B3R ENEE S
subsidiaries - - - - (11,885) - - (11,885) - (11,885)
Total comprehensive (loss) ~ FAZE(EE),/
income for the year N - - - - (22,747) - (91,192) (113,939 438 (113,501)
Purchase of treasury shares  EEEEFR - - - (6,723) - - - (6,723) - (6,723)
Transfer to reserve funds ~ EEZRES - - - - - 11,238 (11,238) - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - (172,116) - - - 172,116 - - -
As at 31 December 2020 and #2020F 128310 &

1 January 2021 200151718 6,914 153,071* (731)* (8,992)* (11,197)* 60,528 (123,026)* 76,567 176 76,743
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (121508)  (121,508) (1,894)  (123402)
Other comprehensive loss for &t 2 EE -

the year:

Exchange differenceson 2 EEBHERL

translation of financial EHER
statements - - - - (2,622) - - (2,622) 88 (2,534)
Redlassification of HEMBARE
cumulative exchange Etipcbh
fluctuation reserve upon  EXLRENGE
disposal of subsidiaries - - - - (1,978) - - (1,978) - (1,978)
Total comprehensive loss ~ FRZ2EEES

for the year - - - - (4,600) - (121,508) (126,108) (1,806) (127,914)
Asat 31 December 2021 20215123318 6914 153071 U309 (15797 6058 (4453 (4954 (1630)  (51171)
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately ~— * ZERBEROBRAMBRARANGS

RMB56,455,000 (2020: approximately RMB69,653,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

REREERERA

& #) A R % 56,455,000 7T (20204 :
69,653,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mMERERER

Year ended 31 December 2021
EE20214F 12H31 HIFF/E

2020
20204
Notes RMB’000
BtEE AREF T
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBHFFEBRERE
Loss before tax BREE AR (120,286) (87,840)
Adjustments for: FHEIEE -
Interest income F B A 5 (529) (1,107)
Depreciation of property, mE - BELRERTE
plant and equipment 7 2,730 8,220
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 7 8,982 31,662
Impairment loss on property, mE - BEkRERE
plant and equipment i} 7 4,846 12,954
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets  {#£ F# & & FEE B 7 3,821 18,084
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME - WE K&
plant and equipment, net THE MEEFE 7 1,166 15,677
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets ~ HEFAEEEEIE 7 = 5,086
Gain on remeasurement of leases B ETEHENRE 5 = (4,832)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENEB QMR 5 (8,250) (57,761)
Fair value change on contingent JEW S AR BRI R RE
consideration receivables i) 5 = (9,411)
Net loss on derivative financial PTEeRmIAEETE
instruments 7, 26(b) 78 311
Covid-19 related rent concessions Covid-19fHBHEER 5 - (501)
Allowance for/(reversal of) expected B HRENFIETEHEE
credit losses in respect of trade EERE(BE) -
receivables, net R 7 4,586 (10,808)
(Reversal of)/allowance for expected TE OB - e REAM
credit losses in respect of JEWGRIRTE BME B &
prepayments, deposits and other BORE), B
receivables, net R 7 (94) 103
Allowance for expected credit losses in  FEUREEE /5 FRIETEER{E
respect of amounts due from related BEERE B
parties, net 7 552 474
Gain on modification of convertible (ERT AT E 5K
loan = 7 - (11,503)
(Reversal)/provision against obsolete BRERERTE
and slow-moving inventories (B[R, 7 (38,397) 39,848
Product warranty additional provision — EEMRIRIEFBINE 7 2,908 3,268
Finance costs A& AR 6 22,468 17,590
Operating cash flow before movements &E& & B BFIEE
in working capital Hene (115,419) (30,486)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD, (M) 125,659 (43,233)
Decrease in trade receivables B Z EWGRIER 93,092 79,981
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and ~ TEfIFUE ~ Ze R E M fE
other receivables U SR IE R 70,448 92,038
Decrease in trade payables B 5 FE R IBR (85,828) (103,869)
Decrease in other payables and accruals — ELfth i~ 30IE K fE =+ & F
N (5,727) (21,376)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities & #& &4 ), (2,994) 830
Utilisation of warranty provision R RIEEHE (3,055) (4,644)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & & f15,/ (Fr )R & 76,176 (30,759)
Income tax refund/(paid) REL(BRHETER 730 (15,737)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) #¢&EENFTS,(FTFA)
operating activities REmEFH 76,906 (46,496)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

meRenak(E)

Year ended 31 December 2021
EE20214F 1231 HIFF/E

2020
20204
Notes RMB'000
gz AREF T
Cash flows from investing activities REEZHFFEBRERE
Payment for purchases of items of BEME - BERREE
property, plant and equipment ER0ENEN (2,514) (68,041)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWMZE - BE REEE
property, plant and equipment B 8 FT1SFIR 289 72,177
Proceeds from disposal of items of L& RS EEE M
right-of-use assets, net of transaction B3R * FIBRZ HAAA
costs - 23,682
Net cash inflow on disposal HERBARM
of subsidiaries FIRBIMA 8,705 102,826
Payment for repurchase of shares B (0] B9 B9 - 3R - (6,723)
Interest received BUFILE 529 1,107
Decrease in pledged deposits BEFFRRL 55,533 60,957
Repayment from related companies R B BEEE A RIAE R 446,970 -
Advance to related companies Bl NI T (510,616) -
Repayment from shareholder RERFAER 2 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from wEEE(FTA) /s
investing activities e FEE (1,102) 185,985
Cash flows from financing activities FEEEFERLSRE
New bank and other borrowings FERIT R E AL B K 160,915 335,212
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (190,540) (459,433)
Advance from related companies PEN ] NI oE N 28,268 366,370
Repayment to related companies FIEEE A AER (46,166) (359,595)
Repayment to a shareholder Ml— BB - (2)
Repayment of convertible loan EErT R ER (11,737) (8,310)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHERE (19,599) (38,613)
Interest paid BAFE (17,800) (8,909)
Net cash flows used in financing BEEBFTARERE
activities R (96,659) (173,280)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRASEEYRD
equivalents S (20,855) (33,791)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#38 4 NMIREEEY
of year 35,969 71,046
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, JMNEE[ERE BRI L -
net TR (1,629) (1,286)
Cash and cash equivalents FRASRESEEY
at end of year 13,485 35,969
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRBSEEYEH
cash equivalents Skl
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEED 18 13,485 35,969

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

BEM LR L AR & M IS R A — 3B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EZE20219F12H31H I F/E
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

80

Morris Home Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries as the “Group”) is an exempted company
with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company
is located at Room 708-709, Laford Centre, 838 Lai Chi Kok
Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 12 January
2017.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the
year, the principal activities of the Group are the manufacture
and sale of sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Morris Capital
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
IIBVIII).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB ERER M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RERERER @
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries MEAREER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as KAREZMBARGFBLT :
follows:
lssued Percentage of equity attributable to the Company
ordinary share FRAREREAM
Place of incorporation/ capital/paid up 2021 2020
registration and business registered capital 20215 20206
Company name e/ Legal entity BRTLBRE/ Direct Indirect Direct Indirect ~ Principal activities
ARER BEREXHY EARR HRERRE Ef 553 Ei Bz TEEH
Mstar International Trading (HK)  Hong Kong/ Limited liability HK$100 - 100% - 100%  Trading of sofas, sofa
Limited United States company covers and other
furniture products
ZEAREA(RR)ERAT FB/3E ARAT 1007872 - 100% - 100% EEDE PEERE
fexEER
Zhejiang Apollo Leather The People’s Republic Sino-foreign equity US§615,000 - 100% - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Products Co., Ltd.* of China ("PRC") joint venture sofa covers
MIMFRRERRERAR REARLMA(RE)  ISEAELE 61500057 - 100% - 100% 4EREEDEE
Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home  The PRC Wholly foreign US$41,710,000 - 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and sale
Co, Ltd* owned enterprise of upholstered sofas
HIFARHREERAR: & NEBALE 41470000570 - 100% - 100% EERHENEDE
Masia Industries Co., Ltd. (Note)  The Kingdom of Limited liability S$5,000,000 - - - 100%  Not yet commenced
Cambodia ("Cambodia”) ~ company Operation
Masia Industries Co., Ltd. (i) REZZE(RHH)) EBAT 50000007 - - - 100% HAEREZE
MorriSofa Europe Limited The United Kingdom ("UK.")  Limited liability (GBP1,000 70% - 70% - Wholesale of furniture
company products
MorriSofa Europe Limited ZE([%E)) ERAAE 1,000 70% - 70% - BEFEAER
Note: Masia Industries Co., Ltd was disposed on 9 March 2021. B45E © Masia Industries Co., Ltd2202143 A9H
HE -
* The English names of these entities represent management’s best effort * ERZEERIAZEMERE T EX A
at translating their Chinese names as these entities did not register any W ZEEENEXERIBERESE
official English names. N EH X EEEEEE -

RARKEERERAR 2021 F£3f 81
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e

BA RS R AL (48

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.1

82

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). For the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements included applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (conTINUED) 2.1 HRBUEE
Going concern FREKE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in conformity with the principles applicable to a going concern
basis. The applicability of these principles is dependent upon
the Group being a going concern and will be able to continue
its operations for the forseeable future. The ability of the Group
to continue as a going concern is dependent on the continued
availability of adequate finance to the Group and the Group’s
ability to attain profitable operations in the foreseeable future,
all of which depend on the eventual successful outcome of the
below mentioned plans and measures in view of the fact that
the Group incurred a net loss of approximately RMB123,402,000
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and, as of that
date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
and total liabilities exceeded its total assets by approximately
RMB47,876,000 and RMB51,171,000 respectively. As at
the same date, the Group’s aggregate interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, lease liabilities and convertible loan
amounted to approximately RMB64,616,000, RMB25,002,000
and RMB69,977,000, respectively, whilst its cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately RMB13,485,000. The
Group's convertible bonds with outstanding principal amounts
of approximately RMB69,977,000 as at 31 December 2021,
matured and fell due for repayment during the year ended 31
December 2021. The outstanding principal amount and related
overdue interests on these convertible loan, amounting to
approximately RMB72,875,000 in aggregate, were not repaid as
at 31 December 2021.

ZERAV MR IRBERARFE
aEENRAGR - ZERAE
AMEARAEBREHELE - I
BEARAITE R RRBE L E - K
SEHFELENRENIAREEE
HEREESAENESURAE
ERAELEHNRRERBALED
B MEBERAEEREZE20215F
RANBLEFEEANBEFEY
AR #123,402,0007T © FiE“%EH
BURR T il 51 81 R I8 e8I SR X T 45
R HEZB  AEENEDHAE
HBAERHEE  BEAEBRRH
BEEBTEDRIX AR 47,876,000
7T K A R ¥ 51,171,000 7T i £R EX A9
B o REHR - REBKFERT
REMER HEBERABRRKRE
HABEE DRI B A K 64,616,000
7T~ AR 25,002,000 7T M A R #
69,977,0007T - MARERHEEFE
Y#) A AR #13,485,0007T © AEE
R2021F 12 A31HAREBERESHA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continuED)

84

Going concern (Continued)

In order to improve the liquidity situation and the Group’s ability

to operate as a going concern, the directors of the Company

have formulated plans and measures to deal with the conditions

referred to above, as follows:

(i

(iii)

(iv)

The Group is taking measures to tighten cost controls
with an aim to attain positive cash flows from operations;

Two of the indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group filed pre-restructuring applications with the
People’s Court of Haining City to request the Court to
allow those two subsidiaries to formulate pre-restructuring

plans to resolve the debt positions;

The Group is in the process of negotiating with its
convertible loan holder and bank to restructure and/or
refinance its borrowings, and secure necessary facilities
to meet the Group's working capital and financial

requirements in the near future;

The Directors are considering various alternatives to
strengthen the capital base of the Company including
but not limited to, seeking new investment and business
opportunities. Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the
Company has entered into the placing agreement with
the placing agent on 25 February 2022. A total of
200,000,000 placing shares have been successfully placed
by the placing agent to not less than six placees at placing
price of HK$0.12 per placing share. The net proceed from
placing amounted to approximately HK$23.71 million and

the placing has been completed on 23 March 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continuED)

Going concern (Continued)

(v)  The ultimate holding company of the Company, Morris
Capital Limited, has stated that it is willing to provide
financial support to the Group to enable the Group to
continue as a going concern and to settle its liabilities as
and when they fall due;

(vi)  The Group is currently re-negotiating the repayment
schedules with certain of its debtors and endeavouring
to request them to repay the trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related companies in
accordance with the repayment schedules agreed with
them; and

(vii)  On 22 April 2022, the Company and a potential subscriber
("Potential Subscriber”) entered into a memorandum of
understanding, pursuant to which the Potential Subscriber
intents to subscribe for and the Company intends to allot
and issue 1,300,000,000 new shares of the Company.
The indicative total consideration for the Subscription
Shares shall be HK$81,900,000 at HK$0.063 per Share.
However, the completion for subscription of shares could
not be determined as of the date of the approval of the
consolidated financial statements.

Having considered the above and with reviewed the cash flow
forecast of the Group, the Directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 on a going
concern basis.

The eventual outcome of the plans and measures described
above are inherently uncertain. Should the Group fail to achieve
successful outcome from the above-mentioned plans and
measures, it may be unable to continue as a going concern, and
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying
values of its assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for any further liabilities which might arise and to classify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e

BA RS R AL (48

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.1

2.2

86

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continuED)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting

period, as explained in the accounting policies.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000)

except when otherwise indicated.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e

BA RS R AL (48

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.2

2.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (conTminuED)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to
HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021.

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the
IFRS decision of the IFRS Interpretation Committee (the
“Committee"”) of the International Accounting Standards Board
issued in June 2021 which clarified the costs an entity should
include as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when

determining the net realisable value of inventories.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group'’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN
ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Amendments to HKAS 1

2.2

2.3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EZE20219F12H31H I F/E

2.3 NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN
ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (conmivueDp)

Amendments to HKAS 1,

and HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020"

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application

of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct

the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group

2.4
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considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing AEBRFTHERTHEBEHREHR
whether it has power over an investee, including: WENKRGEE—HEBEEERE

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights; and

(d) any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous

patterns at previous shareholders’ meeting.
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POLICIES (conTinuED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss

of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries

2.4

FTESABREHRE )

GEEREE)

BahHEteE RS SEE RBEN
RRAHEE ARIFEERER - HBA
AMEmPRAREENAARHES

is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non- ARIEERER - B L RSB EE
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling RS H IR AL AA R o

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial MEFE  2YHWEARNIBRE
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in ELAE  FHEHREERNEEL
line with the Group’s accounting policies. EETBOR—H -

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

PRESRBERMEENAE  #m K

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the A X REAEERKEQARIMERZS

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. EEMBESREN NGRS ARKEH
984 -

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately FOBT 2~ Bl B FE PR AR i o B R £ B Y

from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ERMEROFZESY  BETERSAE

ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate

share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (conTinuED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customers simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has no
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast,
a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conmivueD)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. A contract asset and a contract liability
relating to a contract are accounted for an presented on a net

basis.

A contract asset and a contract liability related to the same

contract are accounted for and presented a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including

allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis except for the allocation discounts.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a customer.
If a stand-alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques such that
the transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to the customer.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (conminuED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group expects
to refund some or all of the consideration received from
customers.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange
for the provision of the specified good or service by another
party. In this case, the Group does not control the specified
good or service provided by another party before that good or
service is transferred to the customer. When the Group acts
as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for
arranging for the specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of sofa, sofa covers and other furniture
products are recognised at a point in time when control of
the goods has transferred, which generally coincides with the
time when the products are delivered to customers and title is

passed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Commission income

Commission income from sales of sofa, sofa cover and other
furniture products is recognised at a point in time when the
Group acts as an agent. The commission income expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the sales when the control
of goods have been passed to customers, which is primarily
upon the goods are delivered to and have been accepted by

customers.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use

in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (conTinuED)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3— based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end

of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contivueD)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is

credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conmivueD)
Related parties
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A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Related parties (Continuea)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(viii a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity, and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(¢) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources, or obligations between
the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price is
charged.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conminueD)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment that are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition

and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the

lease terms and 33.3%

10% to 20%
20% to 33.3%

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and office
equipment

Motor vehicles 20% to 33.3%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building, plant and
machinery and other items of property, plant and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for

use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Leases
Definition of a lease

Lease is a contract contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases with
similar characteristics are accounted on portfolio basis when the
Group reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated
financial statements would not differ materially from individual

leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-

lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-lease

components as a single lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conmivueD)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of buildings that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight — line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received,

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments to
lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent concessions
in which the Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments

and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest

rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

o fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the

commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options, if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTinuED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the

date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review or expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting

the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modiifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a

lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that standalone price to reflect the circumstances of the

particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability less any lease
incentives receivables, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains one or
more additional lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component. The associated non-lease components are included

in the respective lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the
change is a lease modification if all of the following conditions
are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as,
or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately

preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised

in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conminueD)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed

when incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market

place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as other

revenue and other income.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conmivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payment of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group managers together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETHEBRE®

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other revenue and other

income” line item.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conminueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit loss
("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (including trade and bills receivables, deposits
and other receivables, amount due from a shareholder, amounts
due from related parties, pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting

period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are possible within
12 months after the reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at

the reporting period as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
period with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtors;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETHEBRE®
POLICIES (conTinuED)

Financial instruments (Continued) TRIAmE)

Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) DHEERE(E)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) EERBRAEEMGE)

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the e BEHRAKLEHEENERLTELR
operating results of the debtor; NGV o

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the e BEHAEE  KBEIRINIRE
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the BEBRRNFEHHERNTF &
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s B BYEKABRTEEBR
ability to meet its debt obligations. EHIBE N KIE T o

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group i AR - e KN TR

presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since B30 - AEEREEERARES

initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 IRHERLARE KIBE I - EAEEHR

days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable AEWHEBE 2 ERBRE R IEM

information that demonstrates otherwise. It e

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria AEBETFHEZARHIEERR S

used to identify whether there has been a significant increase BREEMNRERS BB SGERE

in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the Rl EIRE - UIRR B BIRERENK

criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit HB AR M E R e BE LN o

risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is

unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about

the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(¢)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over 1 year past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent

recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade and bills receivables and other
receivables are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic

information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTinuED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration

the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:
. Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit

risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on

amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables and amount due from related parties where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R E PSR AR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETHEBRE®

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Financial instruments (Continued) TRMIA#)
Financial assets (Continued) EHEEE)
Financial liabilities and equity 2EEERRK
Classification as debt or equity DI RBEB IR

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial

liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the

B MEARTANREAOZFNA
BARERABERRATANTEED

VRIRE R EREH o A

/

contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial Hremafdir -
liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments EmIT A
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual BETHAFERE aaﬁ?ﬁ@ﬂﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its EAaERY
NGIE:S

liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (contivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as trade
and bills payables, other payables, amounts due to related
parties, amount due to a shareholder, lease liabilities, loans and
borrowings and are recognised initially at fair value and net of

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities,

loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, trade and bills payables, other payables,
amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities, loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate

amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERBE )
POLICIES (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued) ERMITEE)
Financial liabilities (Continued) THEEE)

Convertible loan

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the

exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset

AR E

NEEHRE RIS —HLMEER
BAKEREEHB N BRATAIN

for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments is a SN T R A B AR i S A AR DT A
conversion option derivative. TH-

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative RETHE - BEBO RITETES
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods, DR A SERER o REZBEARK - 7]

the debt component of the convertible loan notes is carried

at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The

BRERRENEL D KA ERA
FORILBHR AR - STE TR

derivative component is measured at fair value with changes in RARERE  MAAEZHNIERE
fair value recognised in profit or loss. MR e

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan

HETARBEERRBEEBNRZ SN

notes are allocated to the debt and derivative components in K ERE AR BN S EEEETRS
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating MOTETAES - BEATETERND
to the derivative component are charged to profit or loss E’]S&%ﬁk$ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁ§ s kR o BAETE

immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt component
are included in the carrying amount of the debt portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible loan notes using

the effective interest method.

B BRAR R SR ANFT AEF B B
FREE - WERABERA AR Al
ERERAR A

Derivative financial instruments TEEMTA
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when PTHETAYSRITVITETASNE
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently AR AAERR - HERRREER

remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in the profit or loss.

A modification of a financial liability occurs if the contractual

cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conmivueD)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a
substantial modification from original terms taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative factors.
If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers
the terms are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees
paid net of any fees received, and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the

original financial liability.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial liabilities will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
liabilities” original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial liability is

recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to

make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
each reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is

included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type warranty
obligations under the relevant contracts with customers for sales
of sofas, sofa cover and other furniture products are recognised
at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the directors’
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group’s

obligation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conmivueD)
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation,
the part of the obligation that is expected to be met by other
parties is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has become
probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow of future
economic benefits will be required for an item previously dealt
with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the
consolidated financial statements in the reporting period in
which the change in probability occurs, except in the extremely

rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity.

126  MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

24 TESHHBERBE )

SRBEEHBENEHFSENIRE
B BUEKEHER - ARATAER
EERBBRLEN AR AEIT
AT

HAREHRXBERGRBETET -
BEFS R EM ST BITHZE D R
HRERAREE  MERBETESS
SRR TR o

$€E.T\|§5L‘ﬁ§$1ﬁ - AHETE BEIR A
BB ERINREB B RATEE ©
Thb/{ﬁ\ ERIN A BERIENEBRA]
EREEZAERMLCEN =R - RITE
ATEE M B A B E BINTEAR & BT
BHRERPEREE  BEGEFRN
TR T EEVEH AT SE R ET R BRI ©

B E’JIEE7FH%§E’J}5ﬁ %)%T\@EA
R MREbE2EREER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reserve in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of each reporting period.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-
of use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising
from subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement
of lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of

remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are

expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continueDp)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “Government subsidies” under “Other income

and gains”.

Employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme"”). Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conmivueD)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Pension schemes (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s operations in Mainland China
are required to participate in central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments, the assets of which are
held separately from those of the Group. Contributions are
made by the Group based on a percentage of the participating
employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully

once made.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the

cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after

deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires

or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various line of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is the United States
dollar (“US$"). Because most of the subsidiaries’ functional
currencies are RMB, the consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the consolidated
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continueDp)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income

or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of the Company and certain
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of
each reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period and their profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that

particular operation is not recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows,
the cash flows of subsidiaries with functional currencies other
than RMB are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of these subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

The major judgements, estimates and assumptions that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year are set out below:

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventories

The Group reviews an ageing analysis of its inventories and
the condition of its inventories at the end of each reporting
period, and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items which are identified as no longer suitable for
sale or use in the production. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such inventories based primarily on the latest

invoice prices and current market conditions.

The provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories
requires the use of judgements and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in the future is different from the
original estimates, such differences will have an impact on the
carrying value of inventories and the write-down of inventories
recognised in the reporting period in which such estimate is

changed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (conTinUED)

Allowance for expected credit loss for financial
assets under HKFRS 9

The Group makes loss allowance on receivables including trade
and bills receivables, deposit and other receivables based on
various factors including the aging of the receivables, historical
write-off experience and forward looking information. The
identification of impairment of receivables requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will impact the
carrying amounts of receivables and the allowance for credit
losses on receivables is recognised in the years in which
such estimates have been changed. Due to greater financial
uncertainty triggered by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
has increased the expected loss rates in the current year as there
is higher risk that a prolonged pandemic could led to increased
credit default rates. See note 37 for further discussion.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. Furthermore, the cash flows projections, growth
rate and discount rate are subject to greater uncertainties in the
current year due to uncertainty on how the COVID-19 pandemic
may progress and evolve and volatility in financial markets,
including potential disruptions in the Group’s manufacturing
operation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continuED)

Derecognition of factored trade receivables and
discounted/endorsed bills receivable

The Group has entered into arrangements with its bankers in
respect of the factoring of trade receivables and discounting
of bills receivable, or endorsed certain of its bills receivable
accepted by banks to certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables due to such suppliers. Based on an evaluation
of the terms and conditions of the arrangements and the credit
quality and settlement pattern of the factored trade receivables
and discounted/endorsed bills receivable, management has to
determine whether the Group has retained substantially the risks
and rewards of certain receivables, which include default risks
relating to such receivables. Details of the transfers of financial

assets are included in note 35 to the financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
or services delivered or provided. This is also the basis upon

which the Group is organised and managed.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8

are as follows:
a.  Retail segment

b.  Manufacturing segment
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conmivuep) 4. DEER )
Segment revenues and results DEURA R LR
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results AT AREBIZA 2MRLEHEE
by reportable and operating segments: DEIMAREEDT
Elimination of
Retail segment Manufacturing segment intersegment sales Total
2ENB EEND AHEEEHH E2h

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
2021 2000F 2021 2000F 2021% 2000F 2021% 2000F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT BNEE ARETT BNEEvA \RETT BNESvl ARETT ENESY
Segment revenue EA
External sales e 216304 183671 286,628 422692 - - 502932 606363
Internal sales rEHE - - 106739 103046 (106739  (103,046) = -
216,304 183,671 393,367 525,738 (106,739)  (103,046) 502,932 606,363
Segment loss PHER (7583)  (31576) (8755  (121,689) - (1078 (110338)  (154342)
Interest income FEMA 529 1107
Fair value change on contingent ~ FEAE A (ERD
consideration receivables AREEY = 9411
Loss on derivative financial TELRTEAFE
instruments (18) -
Gain on modification of BHTAREZN
convertible loan s = 11,503
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  (HEMBLEE 8,250 57,761

Unallocated corporate expenses — RARAFFR
Unallocated finance costs AORBENE

Loss before tax BRAISE

(15522)  (11,002)
(3127 (2.278)

(120,286)  (87,840)

Segment loss represents the loss from each segment without
allocation of interest income, loss on derivative financial
instruments, fair value change on contingent consideration
receivables, gain on modification of convertible loan, gain on
disposal of subsidiaries, unallocated corporate expenses, and
unallocated finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
Board for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

”*BFEETE?E%ﬁa‘BFﬁEIJEﬂE ki
DEMBWA - TTEEBT AR

?E EWHARBHORAEEE - &

uT—Hﬁ‘ng s - HEMB AR
C R RRFX MRS R E K

Zli o WA RN B LR EHRE
2HmNITE -

7 BPREH SRR TS0

REERABR AT 2021 £ 137




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B R R AR I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EE20214F 12H31 HIFF/E
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4. DEFER @)
Segment assets and liabilities SPEEERAE
Retail segment Manufacturing segment Consolidated
ZELH EESH &8
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
20215 2020 20215 2020F 20215 2020%F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT PNSRv A\R%TT PN Evl AR%TT PNS S
Segment assets DEEE 48,067 114,632 294,912 554,890 342,979 669,522
Unallocated corporate KA B ARIEE
assets 31,903 7,330
Consolidated assets IRREE 374,882 676,852
Segment liabilities AEa%E 37,241 5438 304202 459944 341,443 514,330
Unallocated corporate~ AAEARAE
liabilities 84,610 85,779
Consolidated liabilities A &E 426,053 600,109
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and RERDHRREANEDE 2 EHE
allocating resources between segments: B
o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than e BRANMERAFTEE(XERESR
unallocated corporate assets (mainly comprising certain TR 7 RIE - ElR—%&
of amounts due from related parties, amount due from a RRFEREMADERTE
shareholder and other unallocated corporate assets); and BN FTEEEAIEELE
AE R
e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other e BREARNEAFABE(EEBERE
than unallocated corporate liabilities (mainly comprising R ARE  fTESmT
amounts due to related companies, derivative financial B AR ERRE MRS B
instruments, convertible loan and other unallocated NAEIAE)N - FTEAESSE
corporate liabilities). EREDHR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conmivuep) 4. DEER )
Other segment information Hth o E & #
Retail segment Manufacturing segment Unallocated Total
ZEAD £ESY i) st

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
WME 2000% WE 20008 WNE 2008 WNE 20005
RMB'000 YA~ RMB'000 EYETI  RMB'000 EYEXiRN  RMBE'000 EY:AN
IO \RETT NS ARE T ENSael A RETT PSP ARE T

Addition of right-of-use assets ~ FEFFIELE
Addition of property, plantand ~ FEWE - BRER

30,59 4,637 - -

4,637 30,59

equipment B 1,444 2539 1,070 65,502 - - 251 68,041
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #7% ~ BERRIE

and equipment i 1,765 3,002 965 5218 - - 2,730 8,20
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  (FEEEENE 8,138 26,941 844 471 - - 8,982 31,662

(Reversal)fprovision against BERBEGE
obsolete and slow-moving (BE) /%M

inventories 57 291 (38,454) 39,557 - - (38,397) 39,348
Allowance for{reversal of EHRUGERE

alowance for) expected credit ~ EEBREE/

losses in respect of trade (BlERE)FE

receivables, net (345) 223 4,931 (11,031) - - 4,586 (10,808)
(Reversal of)/allowance for BERAZE &

expected credit losses in respect % R BN
of on prepayments, deposits BHRHERS
and other recelvables, net B(%E)/ Bl

e 29 1) (119) 140 (0] 4 (94) 103
Alowance for expected credit  EU RS 300EH)
losses in respect of amounts RHEERER
due from related parties, net ErE - - 552 474 - - 552 474
Impairment loss on property, plant 41 ~ i ks
and equipment HEFR 80 1,489 4,766 11,465 - - 4,846 12,954
Impairment loss on right-of-use ~ FEEEERE
assets B - 8,350 3821 9,734 - - 3821 18,084
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEHBAAA
W - - - - (8,250) (57761) (8,250) (57,761)
Loss on disposal of property, plant  HE#E « R R
and equipment FERER 1,080 - 86 15,677 - - 1,166 15,677
Loss on disposal of right-ofuse ~ HEBREEEH
assets BA - - - 5,086 - - - 5,086
Finance costs BERA 977 5,767 18,364 9,545 3 208 2468 17,590
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTI
R B R R AR I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EHE2021F12H31HIFFF
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueD) 4.

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical
locations of the Group’s revenue from external customers
during the year and the Group’s non-current assets.

(a) Revenue from external customers

The geographical locations of the customers are
determined based on the locations of customer.

NUED)

DEVE R )
hEER

TRBSIFAAEE RS BES
Yoz B AR B R B A A A DN B
ah o

(a) XREINBEF K

EPOEBLEREBERTFM
FEHEETE o

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARYT T AREFT
People’s Republic of China REARANE(BEES)

(including Hong Kong) 71,869 16,890
The United States of America EFERERBE([EE])

("US” or "U.S.") 246,050 466,088
Europe (Note (a)) BOM (B 3E@)) 166,937 110,693
Others Hth 18,076 12,692

502,932 606,363
Note: T -
(a) Europe mainly include France, Norway, Spain, Ireland and United (a) BN Za4E AR - HhEl -
Kingdom. 7T BRERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

EHE2021F12H31HIFF/F
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueD)

Geographical information (Continued)

(b) Non-current assets

4. DEPER#)
hEER 2
(b) FFHBEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT

The People’s Republic of China

hEARANBE(BEEE)

(including Hong Kong) 5,068 17,260
Cambodia R - 32,233
The U.S. =3l 71 -
The United Kingdom (“U.K.") HE([3E]) 3,570 6,272

8,709 55,765

The non-current asset information above is presented
based on the locations of the assets and excludes deferred

tax assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers with did not consist any related
parties of the corresponding year contributing over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group is as follows:

NESERBEEERTIRIEE
EMUEZY  TEEETHR
HEE °

BHEEEFZFHER

RIARF AR REBKRA10% A E
MEBEP (T EEEMEET)BA

Customer 1
Customer 2
Customer 3

Customer 4

=P
B2
=F3
EP4

T
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTFT
140,930 89,985
61,793 76,798
52,419 88,192
65,410 70,558
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

B ZE2021412 831 HIFFE/ZE
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ EabA Kz

WASEFIFEEmAIRERE - E5
HRIRERBERNERFE -

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns, trade discounts and value-added tax.
WA~ IR A RIS T

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

e

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Revenue PN
Recognised at a point of time: RE—F5EIE TR -
Manufacture and sales of sofas, sofa cover 4 ERIHEDEE « DI3tE
and other furniture products NEMEREER 502,225 605,901
Commission income HalA 707 462
502,932 606,363
Other income and gains Hi A & ez
Interest income FBUA 529 1,107
Exchange gains b 5 e - 2,585
Government subsidies (Note (a)) BRT4E 8 (F7E(@)) 3,057 6,279
Gain on modification of convertible loan ~ {E&] AT E FR IS - 11,503
Gain on remeasurement of leases SEHrEHENKE - 4,832
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR AW 8,250 57,761
Rental income el A 844 5,549
Covid-19-related rent concessions Covid-1918FATE B E - 501
Sales of raw materials HERM B - 407
Repair service income HIERIFUA - 1,759
Compensation on factory relocation o 5 #R B 1r 1E (P 3E(b))
(Note (b)) - 18,683
Fair value change on contingent EW AR BRI R B
consideration receivables - 9,411
Compensation income AEWA 3,259 -
Waiver of other payables AR E At FE S FRIE 7,759 -
Others Hity 196 131
23,894 120,508
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e SRR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised local
governments in Zhejiang Province of approximately RMB3,057,000
(2020: RMB4,543,000) in respect of the Group’s contribution to the
industry. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
government subsidies of approximately RMB nil (2020: RMB1,401,000)
in respect of Covid-19-related subsidies, of which approximately RMB nil
(2020: RMB983,000) related to Employment Support Scheme and Anti-
epidemic Fund Retail Sector Subsidy provided by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, and approximately RMB nil
(2020: RMB418,000) in respect of Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme
provided by Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs in UK.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received
compensation on factory relocation from Morris Group Co., Ltd. (“Morris
PRC") due to consider possible losses about factories relocation in peak
season. Therefore, the Group recognised compensation on factory
relocation of approximately RMB18,683,000.

WA~ Ef U A Rz o)

HZE2021F12A31BLLEE - A%E
RN T E 5 RS SAEE AT
B Bh G 49 AR #3,057,0007T (2020
& AR#4,543,0007T) » B E202145
12 A31BIEFE - A& EH Covid-1948
AR T BN AR BT 72 (2020
£ AR®1,401,0007T) © EFRHAR
# T IT (20204 ¢ AR #983,0007T ) £
BEERBRTRERFREORTETS
EpiEn L TEEWMER - kY
ARBZIL(2020F © AR¥ 418,000
o) BRE L S TR SRESREN
HARRESRAEEIER -

HZE2020F12A31BILEFE - AREE
B TRRIRE M AT sEIE K - ANEEIKL
FRERAREEERAR([RETE])
W IRRIREHE - At - REEERE
BB EO AR 18,683,0007T °

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation under the Group'’s existing manufacture and sales of
sofa, sofa covers and other furniture products is approximately

R2021F 128318 - pBEEAREE
RAEXERIEESE  DEEREM
REEGBETHTENEANRSHE
wEE 4 B AR ¥ 9,858,000 7T (2020

RMB9,858,000 (2020: approximately RMB13,239,000) and the F o ARY13,239,0007T) ¢+ WA

Group will recognised this revenue in 2022.

FINANCE COSTS

S ERR2022F FEBLLTEUA -

6. BEERAK

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T AREBTIT

Interest on bank borrowing RITERFE 15,791 7,577
Interest on discount trade bills BLIRE S EE A B 2,009 1,332
Interest on convertible loan IR E T B 3,127 2,278
Interest on lease liabilities HEABEGFE 1,541 6,403
22,468 17,590
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

7. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

7. BRERIERE

AEBH BB ATE IR EME (R

(crediting): AN)TFIFIE -
2020
20204
Notes RMB’000
Bt e AREF T
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA 441,673 507,749
(Reversal)/provision against obsolete ~ [FRE MiEEF S (EE),~
and slow-moving inventories B (38,397) 39,848
Cost of sales SHERA 403,276 547,597
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% - = K& ETE
equipment 13 2,730 8,220
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 14 8,982 31,662
Expense relating to short-term lease ~ AR HHEER S 19,956 12,478
Impairment loss on property, plant W - BB KR ERE
and equipment g} 13 4,846 12,954
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets {# FA4E & E BB 14 3,821 18,084
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEMZE - BER&E
and equipment 518 1,166 15,677
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets & F FEE EREE - 5,086
Auditors’ remuneration: ZHENNE
Audit and audit related services Fit REFTIEREARTS 1,304 1,415
Non-audit services T ARTE 204 248
1,508 1,663
Employee benefit expenses (excluding BE&@FIFSZ (T EEE
directors’ and Chief executives ERFETHRAENSE
remuneration (note 8)): (fF5E8)) -
Salaries, wages and benefits in kind ~~ #% - TEREWHE 63,443 51,950
Pension scheme contributions* IRRET B FR* 16,388 8,626
79,831 60,576
Allowance for/(reversal of) expected & 5 EWFIBIEREES
credit losses in respect of trade 1BRE (B FE
receivables, net 4,586 (10,808)
(Reversal of)/allowance for expected ~ FEfRIFUE ~ &4 K H &
credit losses in respect of WRIEHY TE B E B & 1R
prepayments, deposits and other (B[R, BEF5E
receivables, net (94) 103
Allowance for expected credit losses R EFHE A R FRIAM TEHA
in respect of amounts due from EEEERETE
related companies, net 552 474
Product warranty additional provision = Sh{RIEEEIMEE 2,908 3,268
Gain on modification of convertible ~ {E&] AT AR E FRAURES
loan = (11,503)
Loss on derivative financial PTESB T AR
instruments 78 311
Loss on sales of raw materials** SHE RMEHE B> 24,093 -
Exchange losses b 4 E518 456 8,254
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e B ER AR M AT ()
For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z
7. LOSS BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED) 7.
* At 31 December 2021, the Group had no forfeited contributions available
to reduce its contributions to pension schemes in future years (2020: Nil).
i The above items are included in “Other expenses and losses” on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
8. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year,

disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),

(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2

of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

A TN AL Emde

BRA% BB 18 (47)

* M2021%F 128318 AEETEDZK
R AT IR EL R R 2 AR KA B4
(20204 : &) -

= DEEBFAGEREREMEENRE
R EMFAX REEIA -

EERTFRTHAENS

REBELMMRA - BERRIGIE
383(1)(@) ~ (b) ~ () R (f)IFRA R AR] (3
BESNDER)RANE2E - KNEE
EEREBTRABMEHENT

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

Fees we 2,286 1,346
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBREYAN = 4,215 2,201
Discretionary bonuses E)IEIE4AL 6,722 1,574
Pension scheme contribution RONGTEIE TR 229 106
11,166 3,881

13,452 5,227
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B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

8. DIRECTORS’" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continveD)

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

during the year were as follows:

8.

SEENEETHAEME

(#&)
(a) BMIFHITES

FAXN FHEIFRTEEN
wWEEIIT

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARBTFT

Mr. Liu Haifeng RGeS g 149 160

Mr. Pang Wing Hong (i) 2 () - 133

Mr. Chu Guodi HBEBRE 149 160

Mr. Qian Jun (ii) B E() 179 96

477 549

Notes: BffsE

(i) Mr. Pang Wing Hong was appointed as an independent non- (i) TR HER2019F4A 128

executive director of the Company on 12 April 2019 and resigned
on 31 July 2020.

(ii) Mr. Qian Jun was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 31 July 2020 and resigned on 14 April
2022.

(iii) There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-
executive directors during the year (2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

8. DIRECTORS’" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (conTinuED)

(b) The chief executive officer, and executive
directors

The remuneration of each of these executive directors is

set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2021512A318 L FE

Fees

k3
RMB'000

AR®TR

8. BEEREETHABMNE
(4)

(b)

Salaries,
allowances,
and benefits
in kind

xR
RRWAz

RMB'000
ARBTR

THRBEMITES

HERITEESANHL T

T

Discretionary
bonuses

MiTEA
RMB'000
ARBTR

Pension
scheme
contributions
BIRGE
%

RMB'000
ARBTR

Total
remuneration

HefE
RMB'000
ARBTR

Executive Directors; RWTES:
Mr. Zou Pk 1,261 2,751 5,394 68 9,474
Mr. Zeng Jin (i) e () 97 193 = 25 315
Mr. Wu Yuming RRABAEE 340 931 1,129 68 2,468
Mr. Shen Zhidong TERLE 11 340 199 68 718
1,809 4,215 6,722 229 12,975
Note: BE -
(i) Mr. Zeng Jin resigned as executive director on 8 June 2021. (i) S AER2021F6 ASHEHTH
TEE -
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
5428 BIRGHE
e  REDIE WiBTea = i@
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETRT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZ2020F 128318 1L5E
Executive Directors; y1ES:
Mr. Zou PrE - 1,196 890 31 2,117
Mr. Zeng Jin e 285 316 228 23 852
Mr. Wu Yuming RAB%EE 285 373 228 21 907
Mr. Shen Zhidong AEREE 227 316 228 31 802
797 2,201 1,574 106 4,678
* Mr. Zou was agreed to waive his director's fee for the year ended * BERERBHEELEZE20205F12

31 December 2020.

REZXEEBRER AR 2021 F3;

A3BELEFENESED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B R R AR I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EE20214F 12H31 HIFF/E
9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. hEEZE=%ESR
The five highest paid employees during the year included 2 FANRLEERTEEPEMREES
directors (2020: 1), details of whose remuneration are set out (2020%F : —%) - EHEMSHOFS
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the five highest FRENHES - AZHESHREED
paid employees are as follows: FEFIFOT
2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Fees we 1,601 -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEEYH= 8,169 5,807
Discretionary bonuses [N AN 6,523 890
Pension Scheme contributions RIRET B 226 274
16,519 6,971
The number of highest paid employees whose remuneration fell HWN TRy EEN RS EEHE
within the following bands is as follows: NN
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 721,500,000/ 7T 2 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7C%2,000,00078 7T = 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 22,500,000/ 7T = 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 L% 3,000,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000 11,000,001 T2
11,500,000/ 7T 1 -
5 5
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to any RER  AEEHBEREARERS
of the five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or FREEZNE - fEARSIEMAR
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office EE L INARE B R SRE S E AR
(2020: Nil). BRAE1E (20205F - ) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 10. FTEFiF X2

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly,
the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity is
calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
at 25% during the year (2020: 25%). Pursuant to the relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC, Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home
Co., Ltd. (“Fashion home"”) and Zhejiang Apollo Leather
Products Co., Ltd. (“Apollo”), which qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprises (“HNTE”) in November 2018, were
entitled to a reduced enterprise income tax rate of 15%. During
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, Fashion Home
an Apollo applied the qualification of HNTE and are entitled to
the reduced tax rate of 15% until the year ended 16 December
2024.

REFEFEMNEBRIES ([XB
BLESDNRALAN - AEEH
ARHERENABRZEEHMNE
I FR1SHE ©

1R B FI 1S B PR AR ) F 15 B & )
- &aEREEHEEEH2,000000%8
TT HY 35 F) #6 12.8.25% HY B R AR
i A8 48 2,000,000 7% JT &9 3 F) Bl #%2
16.5% BIBL K -TRL o T4 WAL S FI
SHEHEERNEEEEN T
HHHEEZ16.5%METEREEH - B
It - 5B EEE 52,000,000
TLAt AT FE SR B F128.25% M B R 4
MEBFIST - 2,000,000 7T A
E2 A ERT R F A 16.5% K Y
T o

FR - PRI B AR ZEEZ25% (2020
F :25%) BRGNP B ZEFTEH -
RIRRBIRREERRER - 20184
NMAFERFEMEE( BHFEid
¥DERONIEARERXERRA
A B RE ) RN 78 7 £ 8
mBRATR(FRE])  BEZER
RIEEMMETRIEI5% B 22021
FR2020F12A31HIEFE Bl
KERFRED RAER KM EEE
& WEREZAERRMEISY%  HE
HZE2024F12A16HIEFE AL -
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (conminueD)

The U.S. corporate tax rate is 21% for the year ended 31
December 2021 in accordance to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.
The U.S. income tax includes (a) federal income tax calculated
at a fixed rate of 21% for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: a fixed rate of 21%) on the estimated U.S. federal
taxable income and (b) state income tax to calculated at various
state income tax rates for both periods on the estimated state
taxable income for the respective states. The income subject
to tax in a specific state (i.e. state taxable income) is calculated
based on the federal taxable income with state tax adjustments,
which is then allocated or apportioned to the respective states
(i.e. percentage of taxable income that should be apportioned
or specially allocated to the respective states in which the Group
operates) based on the apportionment factors provided from

the state tax returns in previous year.

A change to the main U.K. corporation tax rate, announced in
the Budget on 11 March 2020, was substantively enacted on
17 March 2020. The rate applicable from 1 April 2020 now
remains at 19%, rather than the previously enacted reduction to
17%. Deferred taxes are calculated based on the rates enacted
in respect of future periods as at the reporting date. Pursuant
to the income tax rules and regulations of U.K., the subsidiary
comprising the Group in U.K. is liable to U.K. at a tax rate of
19% for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Cambodia, the
tax of the Cambodia subsidiary is 20% during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.
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B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

10. FTS T ()

RIBRRERLEER - HE2021F
NRAJNBEFEMNEBRCEREA
21%  ERIFSHBRE@harsx
G AT AR E E20215F12
A318 1 FE21% K EE R & (2020
F o 21% M EEB ) T E /95 F AT
B (o) M A AR A HE S N &9 (A5
MERTRUA + BRI S B R
HEHYNETEE o FEIMNG 8 EERT UK
A BN FERR B UL A FRAS VE L MR Bt
HHAE(HESRSIREN D RES
M) BB 3B FE R B UL (BIZ LL 7] 9 R
RIS B 2 AN SR B4 2 P AE AR RN
MEOERBRABT D) - BIFSLA
FEMMBEREZRRO B E =M
HiSH -

M2020F3 A1 BHTEEEFR AMHH
REFERABEREBZH20204F3
R17BEEEN - B2020F4H 11
B AR RIBERN19% - M3k
A THAE17% o ELEFTER
TR B R s B EARL AR SR AR A8 5 &Y
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (conmvuep) 10. TSR (&)
2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBT T
Current — PRC BER— R
— Charge for the year —FAZH - 2,954
— (Over)/under-provision in prior year —BEFE(BEEE)
BET e (1,194) 155
Current — Hong Kong BNER— &
— Charge for the year —FRAZH 255 86
— Over-provision in prior year —BAFEBERE = (2,807)
Current — Other BER— Efth
— Charge for the year —FRNEH - 331
— Under-provision in prior year —BEFERETR = 60
Deferred tax (note 25) PEIEFRE B (BI5E25) 4,055 2,111
Tax expenses for the year FATIERS 3,116 2,890
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (conmivuep) 10. FA1%

A reconciliation of the tax expenses applicable to loss before tax
at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the majority
of the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense
at the Group's effective tax rate is as follows:

M )

B R B AR M A B S AL 7]
AR EAE R R T E AR ATE R
MR RBIAR X B AR B ERR X
HEMTIRR SRR T -

2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTFT
Loss before tax BREGAIE R (120,286) (87,840)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates LB R Bl AR N iE
applicable to profit in the respective RN R A E R IE
jurisdiction (28,759) (22,038)
Adjustments in respect of current tax BLIBT BRI B EAR IR A A R
previous periods (1,194) (2,592)
Effect of withholding tax on the REBFREWB AR S
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC T ABUITEII R R 2
subsidiaries - 2,817
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 24,472 21,958
Super-deduction of eligible research A BRI R S B RE R 40
development expenditure (4,268) (5,877)
Tax effect of deductible temporary BT EENRETE
difference 4,054 2,111
Income tax on concessionary rate IRERMERTENITEH (2,818) (1,827)
Income not subject to tax BERTUA (20,363) (11,685)
Tax reduction for the year FRTHIERR (8) (18)
Tax losses not recognised RIERHIBEE 32,000 20,041
Tax expenses for the year FATIERZ 3,116 2,890

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 23.9% (2020:
25.1%). The change in the weighted average applicable tax
rate was caused by a change in the profitability of certain
subsidiaries of the Company in the respective jurisdictions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e

BA RS R AL (48

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

11.

12.

DIVIDEND

The board of directors did not recommend the payment of
dividend of the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share amount for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was based on the loss for the
year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
of approximately RMB121,508,000 (2020: approximately
RMB91,192,000), and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 924,188,000 after excluding treasury shares
(2020: 953,526,940) in issue during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no adjustment has been
made to the basic loss per share amounts as the Group had no

potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue.

Diluted loss per share amounts for the year ended 31 December
2020 are calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The convertible loan
is assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares, and
the loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 is adjusted to
exclude the interest expense on the convertible loan and gain

on modification of convertible loan less tax effect, if any.

11.

12.

REZXEEBRER AR 2021 F3;

[:95)

EFTeNERKRNEBE2021F12A
31HIEFEHRLE (20204 : ) -

AR EBERTAAE
TH R E R

HZE2021F12B831BILFE -
BREXEBEBDBREBERFEALRRDF
ETREERAEARGEEEOARE
121,508,000 7T (20204 : Y AR #E
91,192,00070) A R FREEITE B
% B AN S 15 20924, 188,0004% ($0BR
EETF %17 18 ) (20204F : 953,526,940

BOHE -

HE2021E 128318 IFEE - gd
NEE N E D BITBERE LR
MY A BREAEESEELA

= o

HE2020F 12 A31HIEFENFH
HEEBESEBBRAERTITENE
B INE TS EARB BB
HEERRMmTE - RBETRRER
Bt mR - MEZE2020%12 4
BMHIEFE 2 EEEERFAE - DUl
BRARBRER 2 H B RIEET AR
RER WM BE(E) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY (continuED)

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based on

the following:

12. RARIEEERTTAE ALRE
IR =EIREE®)

BREANEFERIIREATEA

e

2020
20204
RMB'000
AREF T
Loss for the purpose calculating basic loss 5 & SR EAE BRI EE
per share (loss for the year attributable to (AR E#A AELTRNEE)
the owners of the Company) (91,192)
Interest on the convertible loan ARRE A2 2,278
Gain on modification of convertible loan  {E5] AT E RIS (11,503)
Loss attributable to the owners of the ARG EERESEENARAR
Company, used in the diluted loss per wWa AELERE
share calculation (100,417)
2020
20204
Weighted average number of ordinary ARG EERERANNEBITEBR
shares in issue, used in the basic earnings  JI#EFH 2
per share calculation 953,526,940
Effect of dilutive — weighted average BERE - LmR IR
number of ordinary shares:
Convertible loan AR E R 49,985,193

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of calculating

diluted earnings per share

B G REE A A TR T 8

el

hal]

1,003,512,133
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

13. W% - BB KRB

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Plant and office Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehices in progress Total
BE BER XA fil
2 4) EET BB RBORE haf: ERIE gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR ARMTn  ARETR  ARETR
31 December 2021 2021512831R
At31 Decernber 2020and 1820205128318 R

1 January 2021 151718
Cost A 31,119 2,17 20,795 9,640 4192 1,221 89,684
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZFFTERAE

and impairment (6,211) (20,798) (16,550) (8,957) (3,631) (1,221) (57,368)
Net carrying amount FEYE 24,908 1919 4,45 683 561 - 32,316
At 1 January 2021, netof — #2021£1718

accumulated depreciation MR EFHTEREE

and impairment 24,908 1,919 4,245 683 561 - 32316
Additions HE = 1,088 534 590 17 285 2,514
Disposaliwritten-off iHE /i - (1,070 (99) (93) (18) (175) (1,455)
Depreciation charge during  EAFERL

the year (257) (1,499) (619) (242) (113) - (2.730)
Impairment loss TEEHE = (165) (4,038) (451) (82) (110) (4,846)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAE]

(note 2816) (FrEr280) (24452) - - (10) - - (24462)
Bxchange realignment EREE (199) (33) (1) (15) @1 - (269)
At31 Decermber 2021, H2021%128318

net of accumulated MEEHTERAE

depreciation and

impairment - 240 2 462 344 - 1,068
At 31 December2021:  H2021%12A318 :

Cost S - 19,195 17,364 9,904 3,459 1,331 51,253
Accumulated depreciation  ZEHTERFE

and impairment - (18,955) (17342) (9,442) (3,115) (1331) (50,185)

Net carrying amount HEE - 240 n 462 344 - 1,068
REFREEBRAR AR 2021 F#H 155
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

13. W% ~ BENMKRE#)

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Plant and office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements machinery ~ equipment vehicles in progress Total
g BER  FA -
BEY nERE B RELRE & fRIE h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTL  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
31 December 2020 20205124318
At31 December 2019and 72019123318 )

1 January 2020 20051718
Cost A B2 27416 2,797 15822 3,68 18,076 121,005
Accumulated depreciation  ZEFHERE

and impairment (4,969) (18,049) (13,258) (11,444) (1,805) - (49,525)
Net carying amount REYE 28243 9,367 9,539 4378 1877 18,076 71,480
At 1 January 2020, netof ~ 5¥2020F1718 -

accumulated depreciation  JIB ZAFTERAE

and impairment 28,243 9,367 9,539 43718 1877 18,076 71,480
Additions AE - 1811 518 408 520 64,724 68,041
Disposalturitten-off e /W

(note (b) (Ff3) - - (319 - - (81,579) (81,894)
Depreciation charge during  EMFERE

the year (1,644) (3578) (1392) (959) (647) - (8,220)
Impairment loss HEEE - (4.447) 4,250) (1,837) (1,199) (1,201) (12,954
Disposal of subsiclaries ~ (HEMBA]

(note 28(2) (Mi&r28(a) - (1,023) - (1318) - - (2341)
Exchange realignment EHHE (1,691) (1) 85 11 10 - (1,79)
At 31 Decernber 2020, 20206128318

net of accumulated MRZAERAE

depreciation and

impairment 24,908 1,919 4,245 683 561 - 32316
At 31 December 2020: R2020F12A318 -

Cost A 31,119 2,117 20,795 9,640 4192 1221 89,684
Accumulated depreciation  ZiFHERFE

and impairment (6,211) (20,798) (16,550) (8.957) (3631) (1221) (57,368)

Net carrying amount FETE 24,908 1919 4,245 683 561 - 32316
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B R R AR I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use or fair value less cost of
disposal calculation of the above cash-generating units as at 31 December
2021 and 2020. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. The
annual growth rates of each CGUs are based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash flows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past
performance and management’s expectations for the market development.

The pre-tax discount rate applied for the cash flow projections is 10.84%
to 11.06% (2020: 10.46% to 12.39%). Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the carrying amount of each of the CGUs to exceed their respective
recoverable amount.

On 19 June 2020, Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co., Ltd., one of a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Vendor”) and Zhejiang
Haining Warp Knitting Industrial Zone Development Co., Ltd. (the
“Purchaser”) entered into the project land transfer agreement, pursuant
to which the Vendor agreed to sell, and the Purchaser agreed to acquire,
leasehold land under right-of-use assets (note 14) and the construction
in progress (note 13), were amounted to approximately RMB26,813,000
and RMB81,579,000 respectively, for the aggregate consideration of
approximately RMB95,736,000. Further detail of disposal of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets was set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 21 June 2020.

13. W%~ W& MR EE

RAFEEREGRAT 2021 F3f

FTHE FIR$ E A BAIR 20214 %2020
FNRAJNBNEAEERAABRLE
ERARCERRBR TXHAETEREERE
REBESREFNETVE - BE KRR
BURERREEERENRMERIENS
BEERRK - SHEEABMNNFER
ENERBBITEERER - BT8R
HAETENFHRMERR - FABE
ATEMEMEERRERSRERTA
B pEEEHEERENE - BRMG
DENEMNBAREREEEHMS
BRERATEHMEL

BeneBAMARMBERA
10.84% % 11.06% (20204 : 10.46% &
12.39%) - EEEMRE  FAZERR
MEREEAREESBITEERNERES
EXENHEEEBRBESEMNIKE
S -

HR2020F6 4198 + ARAIZEWER
AZ—HMIRETRHREARAR(E
FHEMIBECFREXERERRE
RARI([EA])FTIER TR
FEBRE O BARBLEMEARE
W RS ER TOMEE 1 (M
14) RIEZIR(MF13)DRIHOARE
26,813,0007T & A R #81,579,0007T -
BREH A ARKI5,736,0007T © B
HEYE BERIEAREREEE
HE— S FHBEHN A A F B B R2020%6
A21BHR%E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

14. [FREEE

Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
HET# HEWF At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETIT ARBTET

As at 1 January 2020 7202051 H1H

Additions NE

Depreciation charge during the year FRITEE A (M5E7)
(note 7)

Remeasurement of leases (note) sHETEMEE )

Disposal during the year (note 13(b)) FRHE (FizE13(b))
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 28(a))  HE&EME QR (FIFE28(a))

35,000 192,972 227,972
- 30,596 30,596

(363) (31,299) (31,662)

- (53,914) (53,914)
(26,813) - (26,813)
- (105,603) (105,603)

)

Impairment loss (note 7) BEEE(MEE7) - (18,084) (18,084
Exchange realignment [E 5 A= (508) 1,465 957
As at 31 December 2020 and M20206F12 A31A K

as at 1 January 2021 2021%F1H1H 7,316 16,133 23,449
Additions NE - 4,637 4,637
Depreciation charge during the year FRITEE A (M5E7)

(note 7) (28) (8,954) (8,982)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 28(b)) HE&EME R A (M5E28(b)) (7,230) - (7,230)
Impairment loss (note 7) WEEE(MEE7) - (3,821) (3,821)
Exchange realignment [E 5 A= (58) (354) (412)
As at 31 December 2021 720214128318 - 7,641 7,641

Lease liabilities of approximately RMB25,002,000 (2020:
approximately RMB38,893,000) are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of approximately RMB7,641,000 (2020:
approximately RMB16,133,000) as at 31 December 2021. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.

Details of total cash outflow of leases is set out in the
consolidated cash flow statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (conminueD)

15.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group leased properties for own use. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of one to ten years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the

period for which the contract is enforceable.

Details of impairment assessment on right-of-use assets please
refer to note 13(a).

Note: Remeasurement of leases was mainly due to termination of leased
properties agreements under Jennifer Convertibles Inc. and its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

14. FRESE®)

REZE20214 %2020 12318 1
FE ASEHREVEEER -HE
BHMETEFHAE—Z2+F - BEK
ST ERER LiHE - vessE
TRIEVER R G o P E R E &Y
R HE RN RER - AEERE
A& HBERIE TS X7 58 Hl8eT
RYHEART -

EREREEERENANFS - &
28 M5E13(@) °
Wit B2 EEEZHREE2020512

A 318 lEF E 4 1k Jennifer Convertibles
Inc. REWBARE NHEWERZ

INVENTORIES 15. 7§
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET R ARBEFIT
Raw materials R 27,181 41,121
Work in progress R m 22,448 30,128
Finished goods BRI M 33,548 99,980
83,177 171,229

RAKEERBRAT 2021 £ 159
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z
16. TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. BB EIKFIA
2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFIT
Trade receivables from third parties REFE=FTHE S EUGRIA 51,480 147,401
Less: allowance for expected credit losses 3 : TBEAE B EEREE (11,607) (7,021)
39,873 140,380
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on AEBEATFONESRBUEER
credit. The credit period for customers of the manufacturing T AENEEFPNEER—RAE—
segment is generally one to two months, extending up to ZMER - FZXFPHEEHLERE
three to four months for major customers, the credit period for BZ=ZNEA  MEELHRE~H
customers of the retail segment is within one month. The Group EEMAIR—EARN - REEIWEE
does not hold any collateral over its trade receivables balances. HE S EKFIBLE S A EMIEKE
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. m o ESRKIERTETE -
An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of the RAREHR - 1RER B EFERE
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provision, #HE25KE 5 EBGRIAR BRER H T 10
is as follows: N

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREFIT
Within 3 months @A A 32,955 134,551
4 to 6 months 4%618 A 6,290 5,628
7 to 12 months 721218 A 628 201
39,873 140,380

Details of the ECL assessment was set out in Note 37. A EERENMEFEHNM T

37 ¢
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FREMEIRERMET (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2021
EE20219F 12831 H I F/E
17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 17. TENRIE ~ e MEMfE
RECEIVABLES Wk IB
2020
20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
Advances to suppliers TEHEERE IR 6,668 60,969
Other prepayments HATAIFRIR 2,320 5,551
Deposits and other receivables e K H A eI IR 26,121 39,764
35,109 106,284

18.

Details of the ECL assessment was set out in Note 37.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

ERATEREEEETENFIEENH
5¥37 °

18. ME MM HFEDANE
HHFER

2021 2020

2021F 20204

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTF T ARBFIT

Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTHE 28,190 106,207
Less: Pledged deposits for bills payment B ENEEHEERER

(note 19) (BI7E19) (14,705) (70,238)

Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 13,485 35,969

Cash and bank balances denominated in: 8% MIRITASRIZIAT
BEH¥EHE

RMB AR 17,638 76,159

Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") Bo(l#x]) 3,521 6,046

uss$ EW 4,725 8,812

British Pound R 2,306 15,190

28,190 106,207

RAKEERERAT 2021 £ 161
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B R R AR I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18. e LML FEDANE

PLEDGED DEPOSITS (conmmuep) ik NE )

As at the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash RIEBR - MARKIENRS
equivalents denominated in RMB amounted to approximately LR FEWLH A AR17,638,000
RMB17,638,000 (2020: approximately RMB76,159,000). RMB 70 (20204 : 49 AR ¥76,159,000
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under L) c ARBAAERIRAEME
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and B XM - ARIE A B N NE B DA
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign BRGEE  SERNEBTERE &
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange S BB A F R R R IMNEEH S
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct HBITHARBHBRBEME -

foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITRESBBETARITERNELF
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with BYRARET S o RITAARTF R B E
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. BRRSE B EERIFHRIT o
19. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 19. BZRENTIERENER
2021 2020
2021%F 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Trade payables to third parties JENE=FHESHIE 91,982 113,039
Bills payables ERRE
— arising from intra-group purchases (note) — R E&EREEE (M) 67,348 54,098
— arising from third party purchases —REF=FEE 19,815 98,100
179,145 265,237
Note: The balance represented bills payables which were issued among Mizk : &R AAREBENE QT 2 R E BRI
subsidiaries of the Group for intra-group transactions whereby the R 5 METHNENEE - mAAERAEK
corresponding bills receivables have been discounted or endorsed to third EECERSETFE = EE DI
parties prior to the maturity dates of the bills. Ho
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z
19. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (conmmuen) 19. B RNFIANENREE
(#)
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end RIEER - BEZEEHEINES
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: JE A RRIE 2 e T R R 6 AR B 9 AT A
T

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET T ARETT

Within 1 month & AR 15,187 100,252

1 to 3 months 12318 A 7,772 44,978

4 to 6 months 4Z26{E A 60,700 48,014

Over 6 months tBiB61E A 95,486 71,993

179,145 265,237

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. Trade B REMNFTIBNMENEREATEE °
payables are normally settled on terms of 30 to 180 days while Z I ENRIBRTENI0E180H AL
bills payables are settled on a term of 90 to 270 days. B mENEIRAR0E270H A4
Certain bills payables were secured by pledged deposits with & T EMAZE R IRRER R

aggregate carrying amounts as listed below: HARmESINNT

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARTFIT

Pledged deposits of the Group (note 18)  AREBEH DKM FR

(Pff5£18) 14,705 70,238
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, certain bills payables were R20214 &2020F12A318  &F
secured by corporate guarantees provided by independent third ENRERBYE = HIREMNARIE
parties. IRIEIEIR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS/
CONTRACT LIABILITIES

0. EM &N FIE M ERT B

B/ anaE

2021 2020

20215 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%ET T ARBT T

Other payables H At JETFRIE 32,298 38,532

Accruals (Note (i) FEETE R (FEE3) 11,022 11,234

43,320 49,766

Contract liabilities (Note (ii)) A H B EMEEG) 9,858 13,239

Notes: BisE -

(i) As at 31 December 2021, default interest on convertible loan of (i) M2021F12 A318 » Al EZRNED

approximately RMB2,898,000.

(ii) Contract liabilities represent contract amounts received in advance of
delivery of goods.

There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities

balances during the reporting period.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
in the current reporting period relates to brought forward
contract liabilities. There was no revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that related to performance obligations
that were satisfied in a prior year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS/ 20. mﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁ&@‘ﬁ%
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (conmvuep) BHRBE®
The Group's revenue recognised that was included in the REERBYTFAGHBEEZHRNE
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the period: TR

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T

Amounts received in advance of delivery A& RATUEEI IR

of goods 13,239 24,844
Note: Contract liabilities in relation to sales of finished goods are expected to MizE . ERQEERMNENABEEEN—
be settled within one year. The entire amount of contract liabilities as at 1 FANEE - 202151718 (2020%F -
January 2021 (2020: all) is all recognised as revenue during current year. 2EONEHENAEIRAFEERR
NG

Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are

Hib N FAN B BR RS S KB
FBERELER -

normally repayable on demand.
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AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

21. LEASE LIABILITIES

//////

As at 31 December 2021

As at 31 December 2020

R2021%12A31H 720206124318
Present Present
value of Total value of Total
the minimum T the minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
RIEHE BRIEHE REHE HEHE
HAREE EEE RFHAE AREsE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARETR ARBF T AREFT
Within 1 year 1R 13,032 14,012 17,259 18,680
After 1 year but within 2 years 1226R 8,977 9,399 11,121 11,905
After 2 years but within 5 years 2E5FR 1,673 1,953 8,304 8,848
After 5 years BiB5F 1,320 1,383 2,209 2,388
11,970 12,735 21,634 23,141
25,002 26,747 38,893 41,821
Less: total future interest expenses il 1 RIRF| S FIX %8 (1,745) (2,928)
Present value of lease obligations ~ FAEAIERE 25,002 38,893
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EE20219F 12831 H I F/E
21. LEASE LIABILITIES (conmvuep) 21. HEaEw
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HHEERNDTAT -
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
Current liabilities mEaE 13,032 17,259
Non-current liabilities EREEE 11,970 21,634
25,002 38,893
22. AMOUNT DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 22. FERTEAHE A RIFIA
The related parties are companies controlled by the controlling A T BRI IR AR R H BN T] o FE
shareholders. The amount due to related companies are RTEEBE AR RIEAEIRE 28 NAE
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. IRENREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

EE20214F 12H31 HIFF/E
23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 23. FHERIT M HEMETK
BORROWINGS
2021 2020
2021% 20205
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity BN  interest rate Maturity RMB'000
BERAI= 38 ARETR ERFIE 0 ARETR
Current - secured - B
Bank loans FITER 4.5%-6.5% 2022 50,669  3.1%-6.5% 2021 94,734
Current - unsecured BIH - g
Other borrowings Ethfgt 4.9%-9.0% 2022 13947  NATER  NATER -
64,616 94,734
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREF T
Analysed into: DITRBATEIE
Bank and other borrowings repayable R—FRNIZEKEED
within one year or on demand HR1T R E M E X 64,616 94,734
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e MR AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (conminueD)

Notes:

(a)

Certain of the Group’s secured bank loans are secured by:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

pledges of certain parcels of land and buildings which were
provided by Morris PRC, a common shareholder as at 31 December
2021 and 2020;

personal guarantees provided by the Controlling Shareholders as at
31 December 2021 and 2020;

corporate guarantees provided by Morris PRC, a common
shareholder as at 31 December 2021 and 2020;

corporate guarantees provided by Morris Real Estate, a company
controlled by the Controlling Shareholders as at 31 December 2021
and 2020;

corporate guarantees provided by independent third parties as at
31 December 2021 and 2020; and

pledges of certain properties which were provided by Morris Real
Estate, a company controlled by the Controlling Shareholders as at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group's bank and other borrowings were denominated in the

following currencies:

23.

STRRTT M A IE K )

(b)

AEENETEEMRRTERATIE
TREIEAR

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

20214 [ 2020 12 A318 -
RAFE(— B ARBRR) 2 H#
#E TR it R SRR

PR AR ER A 20214F 522020412 A
31 B REMEARER

RAPE(—&HERRKRE) 72021
F 2020512 A31 BIRHA AR
BR:

2 AR AR SR 2R Il ) R B R A E R
20214F 22020 12 A31 Higft
B A BIER

B = 20214 220204 12
A3BREHARER &

DAY AR IR B I 0 A R R A Hh
720214 % 2020412 A31HiR
A EER S ES (=i i

REEMRIT REMERIZ TN EE T
& :

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
RMB AREE 27,520 61,000
Us$ e 37,096 33,734
64,616 94,734
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z
24. WARRANTY PROVISION 24. (RGBS
2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFIT
At beginning of year F4 3,124 4,689
Additional provision (note 7) ROMEE (MH5E7) 2,908 3,268
Amount utilised during the year FRNEFERIE (3,055) (4,644)
Exchange realignment P H §E R (70) (189)
At end of year FR 2,907 3,124
The Group provides one-year warranties to certain customers rEBRMRETEPEH -—FHERR
on its products, under which faulty products are repaired or BRG  BUtBREHERSESSE
replaced. The amount of the provision for the warranties is B Ei - REBHSBBREHEE
estimated based on sales volumes and past experience of the MBS FOR ERFEITHET o &
level of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on SEBREREERELE - WERKE
an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate. HHEET ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z
25. DEFERRED TAX 25. JRIETRIA
Deferred tax assets EEHIEERE
Unrealised Impairment
profit losses on
arising from inventories
intra-group and
transactions receivables Total
EBA FER
RBELEN BE W FRIE
REBERF WEEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTFIT ARETT AR®BTFT
At 1 January 2020 720201 H1H 1,670 7,350 9,020
Charged to profit or loss during FANEERR
the year (25) (4,853) (4,878)
At 31 December 2020 and 2020912 H318 &
1 January 2021 2021%F1H1H 1,645 2,497 4,142
Charged to profit or loss FANEERNR
during the year (1,645) (2,497) (4,142)
At 31 December 2021 72021512 A31H - - -
The Group has unused tax losses arising of approximately REBERRGAHIBBEHAARE
RMB262,510,000 (2020: approximately RMB112,770,000) that 262,510,00070(2020%F : K38 AR
available for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred 112,770,0007T) + A] AR S AR 2R FE
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as Am A o RREERTEHRIAEEN
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for MEARIEEE—RERE - MERD
some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits w AR TP sE AR SE AT B R AR
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. BEE U ERZE EERRIEL

MIBEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

25. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 25. IEEFRIE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities

ELERIAEE

2021 2020

20215 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T AREBFIT

At beginning of year F4 123 2,888
Credited to profit or loss during the year ~ F AT AEZS (87) (2,767)
Exchange realignment M 34, 8 B (2) 2
At end of year FR 34 123

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirements is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, during the year ended 31 December 2021
the applicable rate is 5% (2020: 5%). The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e SRR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

26. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

(a) Convertible loan

26. AIMRER TTESET
=}

RS

(a) AHRRERR

2021 2020
2021%F 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Liability component of MR ERNEES
the Convertible loan 69,977 84,356
Analysed for reporting purpose as: BEMEBSFTAT -
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Liability component of MR ERNEERS
the Convertible loan:
Current liabilities MENEE 69,977 84,356

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into a
convertible loan (the “Convertible Loan”) agreement
(the "Convertible Loan Agreement”) with International
Finance Corporation (“IFC"), pursuant to which IFC
agreed to lend, and the Company agreed to borrow,
the Convertible Loan in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$200,000,000. IFC has the right to convert all or
any part of the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Loan into shares of the Company at an
initial conversion price of HK$2.22 per conversion share
(subject to adjustments as set out in the Convertible Loan
Agreement). The outstanding principal of the Convertible
Loan bears interest at a rate of 1.25% per annum above
6 months HIBOR. Interest period of the Convertible Loan
shall be a period of six months in each case beginning
on an interest payment date and ending on the day
immediately before the next following interest payment
date.

20181 A5H - ARG EE
Beman((EBRERAT])
RIS — AR E R ([ TRR
EXRD mzE (I TRERERT
R BEZRE BEEREesH
AEREHBRAAFRES
AN & # %8 /200,000,000 %
TR IRREN - HES/A
A AEERIRIRKRRG2.22%8
TR AR E R 2 E sk & 5
ABMBRERREERCEE R
AR ARG (AIRIB AT RRE
R ETEEL ) o Al
BREFRREERSBRFFE
1.25% (@R EABFBRITR
ERB)FTE - REEBRT
AR E R F B8 AN E
A BREABRBREEET —
&S B8R —H 1L ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

26. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL  26. AR E R T4/ T
INSTRUMENTS (conTivuED) B®)

(@) Convertible loan (Continued) (a) TTEBRERE)

Unless previously converted, the Company shall repay
50% of the non-converted portion of the Convertible
Loan outstanding as at fourth anniversary of the date of
the Convertible Loan (the “First Repayment Instalment
Date").

Subject to any repayment to be made on the First
Repayment Instalment Date as set out above, the
outstanding amount of the non-converted portion of the
Convertible Loan shall be repaid on the fifth anniversary of
the date of the Convertible Loan (the “Maturity Date”)
together with a redemption premium (the “Redemption
Premium”) which is an amount equal to 3.25% per
annum of such portion of the principal amount of the
Convertible Loan to be repaid or prepaid in respect of
the period beginning on the date of the disbursement
and ending on the day immediately before the date of
repayment or prepayment. Any amount of the Convertible
Loan which is redeemed by the Company will forthwith
be cancelled.

In the year 2020, the Convertible Loan was defaulted
due to the Company failed to repay the instalment in
accordance with the repayment schedule. On 29 May
2020, the Company was granted a temporary waiver
by IFC to postpone the instalments. At the same time,
the repayment schedule of the Convertible Loan was
amended from original Maturity Date to on/prior to
28 December 2021. The Company recorded gain on
modification of the Convertible Loan of approximately
RMB11,503,000. A new Convertible Loan was recognised
with effective interest rate with 6.99%, where fair value
of derivative financial instruments were Nil.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Convertible Loan was matured and fell due for repayment.
The total outstanding principals amount and related
overdue interests of approximately RMB72,875,000 were
not repaid as at 31 December 2021.
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e IR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

26. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (conmivueD)

(a) Convertible loan (Continued)

The Convertible Loan recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group is bifurcated
into two components for accounting purpose, namely the
liability component and the derivative component, and

26. AIHARRER TTHESRI LT

B
(a) AIRRER(£)

KA E LR & B H5 iR 0 & iR
B AT R R & TR A3 R 18 & 5 AP
o BAaESs RITERD
RIE AR SO EEHm

the movements of these components during the reporting N
period are as follows:
Derivative
Liability financial
component  instrument Total
EEHS TEEMIA st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT AREFTT ARETT
As at 1 January 2020 720201 A1H 109,588 - 109,588
Repayment of Convertible Loan {Ei& AJ# A% E K (8,310) - (8,310)
Amortisation of liability AR EFREBER D
component of the k%S
Convertible Loan 2,278 - 2,278
Accrual interest FEETFIE (2,343) - (2,343)
Gain on modification of {EET AT AR B KA
Convertible Loan* Ug 5t (11,503) - (11,503)
Exchange difference PE i =58 (5,354) - (5,354)
As at 31 December 2020 72020512 318 &
and 1 January 2021 20211 A1H 84,356 - 84,356
Repayment of Convertible Loan (Ei&A[ A E R (11,737) - (11,737)
Amortisation of liability AMBREREERD
component of the 4 55
Convertible Loan 178 - 178
Accrual interest FEETFI B (371) - (371)
Fair value change NAEES - 78 78
Exchange difference bEH R (2,449) - (2,449)
As at 31 December 2021 M2021512 8318 69,977* 78 70,055

# During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
re-negotiate with the holder of the Convertible Loan to renew
the repayment schedule. As the modification of the Convertible
Loan does not result in derecognition, the Company record
gain on modification of the Convertible Loan of approximately
RMB11,503,000.

* During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's convertible
loan matured and fell due for repayment. The outstanding
principal amount of convertible loan is repayable on demand
plus redemption premium and according to the Convertible Loan
Agreement, IFC has the right to convert unless the Company has
repaid the Convertible Loan in full.

REZXEEBRER AR 2021 F3;

# HZE2020F12A31HLEFE - &
ARHEABRRERITEAERE
R EEEREFRR - HMERT
ARBRERTEERRIEER
RNPA RSB ET AT IR B R A IR
A ARKE11,503,0007T ©

* HZE2021F12A31BLLEFE -
REBARBRERDERETE
E o TIRERNKEENSH
nEBEENEEAREREEAR
BARRERGE  BRFEE/A
RIAREEITIANR  EARDRBE
EEATIRRER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

26. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL  26. AR E R T4/ T

INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) B #)
(b) Forward exchange contracts (b) REIIMNESH
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T T ARBTFT
Forward exchange contracts REIINE S XY = 313
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group HZE2020F12H31HIEFE -
entered into forward exchange contracts, the notional REBET L =BIINES L -
amount of forward exchange contracts were US$800,000 EHIINESHONEZESHER
and US$500,000 with exchange rate of US$1.3011 per 800,000 7t & 500,000 JT -
GBP and US$1.2903 per GBP, respectively. RSB AETREFEN1.30113FE

TCR e H,1.2903% T °

The forward exchange contracts was non-hedging RHINESH RIEEHRITET
derivative and was classified as current liabilities, with B U8B ERDHERE  HR
length of up to 12 months and a maximum total volume BERA/I2ER  RBEXHE
of GBP4,000,000 with an initial margin requirement of 3% /4,000,000 85 - ¥IRRE
of the total traded volume and maximum credit limit of ERABERTSHEN3% NREE
GBP80,000. EPR#E 480,000 £ o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

27. SHARE CAPITAL

27. B

2021 2020
20215 20205
US$'000 RMB'000 US$'000 RMB'000
FERT ARET T TET ARETT
Equivalent Equivalent
% %(g
Authorised: Py
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,000/% &
of US$0.001 each (2020: FREE0.001ETTH)
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 3@k (2020 :
US$0.001 each) 10,000,000,0004% & H%
EfE0.001E LAY
EER) 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR :
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares 1,000,000,000/ &%
of US$0.001 each (2020: EfE0.001E LAY
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of k(2020 :
US$0.001 each) 1,000,000,0008% ZA% A
B0.001 =T EBAZ) 1,000 6,914 1,000 6,914
The movements in the Company's issued share capital during KABRARFEZ RN EEITIRAZES)
the year are as follows: I

Number

of ordinary

shares in issue

Issued capital

BT
LBk E B EEITAR
RMB’000
ARETF T
As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, 72020418 1H + 20204
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 12A318 20211418
20214128318 1,000,000,000 6,914
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

28. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 28. HEKEAR]

(a) Disposal of Jennifer Convertibles Inc. (a) HEJennifer

.

Under the sale and purchase agreement dated 4 July 2018
entered into among the Company, Morris PRC and Mr.
Zou Gebing, the Company has the right to require Morris
PRC to repurchase all the issued and outstanding common
stock of Jennifer Convertibles Inc. at the Exit Price of
US$35 million when Jennifer Convertibles Inc. and its
subsidiaries records an audited net loss after tax (excluding
profits and losses not arising from the ordinary and usual
course of business) for any of the two years ended 31
December 2019 or 2020 (“Put Option”). On 31 March
2020, the Company served the Option Notice on Morris
PRC and Mr. Zou stating its decision to exercise the Put
Option to require Morris PRC to repurchase Jennifer
Convertibles at the Exit Price of US$35 million. The Option
Notice was accepted by Morris PRC and the Warrantor
on the same date. The exercise of the Put Option and
the Receivables Disposal constitute discloseable and
connected transactions for the Company. The transaction
was completed on 14 August 2020. The net liabilities of
Jennifer Convertibles Inc. and its subsidiaries at the date
of disposal were as follows:

Convertibles Inc.

BEARART - ZATRE KT
RS AEEI Y AHAR20184F7
R4B®EBEWZE - & Jennifer
Convertibles Inc. 2 H K8 2 7
REZE20195302020F12 A31
A IEMEFE E R —FEREE
ERGRBRBEEFE(CTREL
FRBABR —REBBRETE
ERRFIREER)  NAFEE
EREATEIZISEEETH
F & BB ElJennifer Convertibles
Inc. V2 BITREITEINE
iR (TR EERE]) - 722020
F3A31  ARARREAFE R
BEEREERBA - XA
HARAETEROGEREERR
AR HEISEEETNTEE
[@&&Jennifer Convertibles ° J&3%
RN FE HEREAFE KR
BAER  TEROEEER
FEWGRIEH & EIEBK AR T
WETHEBREERS - %X
B2 M2020F8 A14H K °
Jennifer Convertibles Inc. & E i
BARIRNEERBNEEFE
PUNNE

2020
20204
RMB'000
AREFT

Consideration received: FTURER R AE -
Cash received FriiR & 104,212
Amount due from a related company e — I RA RS A =1 5RIE 138,949
243,161
Less: contingent consideration receivables W FEUEARE (243,161)
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e IR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E220219F 12431 HIFF/Z

28. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continueD)

(a) Disposal of Jennifer Convertibles Inc.

28. HEMMB AR #®)

(a) HEJennifer

(Continued) Convertibles Inc.(#&)
2020
20204
RMB'000
AREF T
Analysis of assets and liabilities over PMAEEHEZEERES !
which control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KR 2,341
Right-of-use assets EREEE 105,603
Other receivables Hyrlsia 11,826
Prepayments TE{IFRIE 5
Pledged deposits e iiten 1,072
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEYD 1,386
Trade payables B E 508 (20,021)
Contract liabilities aHaE (11,656)
Other payables and accruals EfEFIARETER (1,126)
Amounts due to shareholders JEST R R I8 (10,602)
Lease liabilities HeEaE (124,704)
Net liabilities disposed of & 2 BETFE (45,876)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBARZE !
Fair value of the consideration REMIAE -
Net liabilities disposed of FrtEzaEFE 45,876
Exchange fluctuation reserve AN e 11,885
57,761
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELENRESRAFE
Analysis of net cash flow in respect of HEMBARZREREFHE
the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: ST
Cash received PR & 104,212
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B FTHENReRBEEEY (1,386)
102,826
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28. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (conminuep)

(b) Disposal of Masia Investment Limited and
its subsidiary

On 9 March 2021, Morris International Group Limited, a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into share purchase agreement with Morris Capital Limited.
Pursuant to the share purchase agreement, Morris Capital
Limited agreed to acquire 100% issued share capital in
Masia Investment Limited and its subsidiary held by Morris
International Group Limited at the transfer consideration
of approximately RMB35,056,000 (equivalent to US$5.513
million). After completion of the above disposal on 9
March 2021, Masia Investment Limited and its subsidiary
ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company.

Consideration received:

28. HEMHMB AR
(b) BEEZDREARLATR

HM B F

R2021%F3A9H » A RAIZHE
BE2EMNBARRABKREE
BRAGERAEARER AR
R IEE Wz - RERM
BEWEZ  FREXBRAT
[A & LA 49 A R 35,056,000 7T
(HHERS513EEXL) ek
REKERZATBEIBRESEERA
ARBENEDREERAAR
H B A A 100% B B 317 A
7K o R2021F3 A9RFEAK il
HE%R  ELREBRAFK
BB AR TBAEARRZH
BRA -

P B -

2021
202145
RMB’000
ARMT T
Cash received FTUGR & 9,538
Amount due from related companies JE L 8 25,518
Total consideration received FUCER AR (B 35,056
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control PMARERGEZEERERE

was lost:

9 March 2021

202143 H9H

RMB’000

ARET T

Property and equipment LEISE 24,462
Right-of-use assets EREEE 7,230
Cash and cash equivalents ReFREEEY 833
Other payable and accruals HAbfERIA R ERT B R (3,741)
Net assets disposed of FrHE v BfEFE 28,784
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28. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (conmmuen) 28. HEMB AR
(b) Disposal of Masia Investment Limited and (b) HEZZRERBRAAIR
its subsidiary (Continued) HKIE AR &)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RME AR 2 :
9 March 2021
2021463 H9H
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Consideration received and receivable FATHCER 2 FE WL ER B X (B 35,056
Net assets disposed of FrHEzBERE (28,784)
Exchange fluctuation reserve NN 1,978
Gain on disposal HE 2 W 8,250
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENRERAFE !
Analysis of net cash flow in respect of the disposal of HEMBERARIZHESREFE
subsidiaries is as follows: DT -
RMB’000
ARMT T
Cash consideration BeRE 9,538
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of W T ERITHEMREIRE (833)

8,705
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29. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(i)

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands, share premium of the Company
is available for paying distributions and dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
and Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the distributions or dividend payments, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the

ordinary course of business.

Treasury shares

As at 31 December 2021, 75,812,000 (2020: 75,812,000)
ordinary shares acquired under the Restricted Share Award
Scheme were deem to be held in treasury, representing
7.58% of the shares in issue as at 31 December 2021.
The nominal value of shares held in treasury was
approximately RMB8,992,000 (2020: approximately
RMB8,992,000).
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AEERAEE RBEFEOEER
BHUE2INEAHEEDE -

(i)

(i)

Bt aE
RIEFEHE R RERIER)
F202F - AREBERRE N
AR R B9 AR TE 5 A 2 BB A7 i (B
FER BRSNS 72k B BB,
T Bl B2 16k 1 2 R BE 0 Tk 3 B
A& RRFIRERMNET
REBBIZH B REET -

EERD

MR2021F 128318 » ZRHIRE
17 SZEETEI N Y #975,812,000
% (20204 : 75,812,000/% ) &
BREEAANEFEIRES
G R2021 12 B31 HE %17
B #7.58% © AETF AR #

8,992,0007T (20204 : 9 A A
R#38,992,0007T) °
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e MBRERMEE)
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29. RESERVES (conmivueD)

(iii) Exchange fluctuation reserve

(iv)

(v)

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries with
functional currencies other than RMB.

Reserve funds

The transfers from retained profits to the reserve funds
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules
and regulations and the articles of association of the

Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the merge effect for acquisition
of additional equity interest in subsidiaries without the
overall change in the control in that subsidiaries and

surplus of investment in subsidiaries before the merging.

29. fEfE#®)
(i) R KB

(iv)

(v)

REZXEEBRER AR 2021 F3;

KB HEEERREARAR
LB RRMBHREAARE
AN Th BE B EE A Y P AR
FAME L =5

HEEE

RIZH B BRI EIER AR
AKX B R B BSZ H P B A )
F) 4B A 5 72 A B S AR B D T 98
BrEEER -

Hituf#

H{th % 4 15 WK BB P BB 2 B BB S
BENAHEE ML BHZ
B /8 2 7 0 HE I 4 Ko A& BF AT IR
M RRIHRE B SRIFHER
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30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 30. MEEBMEANEBEY
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES AR
Change in liabilities arising from financing activities: BMEEBMEENBEZE
2021 20214
Interest-
Amounts bearing
due to bank
related Lease  Convertible and other
companies liabilities Loan  borrowings Total
PEfT R RSB
ARHE HEEE ARRER RHEMER B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT AR¥TR AR¥®TR AR%TRT AR%T:R
As at 1 January 2021 #2021 1R18 46,575 38,893 84,356 94,734 264,558
New bank borrowings made ~ FRFEIEITETR - - - 160,915 160,915
during the year
Financing cash inflows BERETA 28,268 - - - 28,268
New lease entered AR kD) = 4,637 = = 4,637
Interest charged FIESH - 1,541 178 15,791 17,510
Repayment during the year ~ FAEN (46,166) (19,599) (11,737) (190,540) (268,042)
Interest paid and payable B RERFIE = - (371) (15,790) (16,161)
Exchange realignment LS (943) (470) (2,449) (494) (4,356)
Asat 31 December 2021 R2021%12A318 21,734 25,002 69,977 64,616 187,329
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30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 30. A EHFEANEEY
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (conTivuED) BRo#)
2020 20204
Interest-
Amounts bearing
Amount due to bank
duetoa related lease  Convertible and other
shareholder ~ companies liabilities Lloan  borrowings Total
-4 e SRR
R 58 DA BERE THRRER  REMER &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT  ARETT ARETR  ARETR ARETRT AR%TR
As at 1 January 2020 72020F1 518 10,107 80,310 223,213 109,588 220,815 644,033
New bank borrowings made  FRFIERITE - - - - 335,212 335,212
during the year
Financing cash inflows HEBREAA - 331,633 - - - 331,633
Covid-19-related rent Covid- 19/ lHEER - - (501) - - (501)
concessions
Interest charged FIERH & - - 6,403 2,278 7,577 16,258
Remeasurement of leases BT EME - - (58,746) - - (58,746)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAR (10602)  (104212)  (124,704) - - (239518
Gain on modification of CHBE S olen - - - (11,503) - (11,503)
Convertible Loan
Repayment during the year ~ FIEE - (359,595) (38,613) (83100 (459433  (865951)
Interest paid and payable B REFFIE - - - (2,343) (7,577) (9,920)
New lease entered FATUAE - - 30,59 - - 30,596
Non-cash changes Fhe ey 324 92,995 - - - 93,319
Exchange realignment AR 17 5,444 1,245 (5,354) (1,860) (354)
As at 31 December 2020 2020412318 - 46,575 38,893 84,356 94734 264558

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. AREE
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as REBERNAREHRTEEREAK
at the end of the reporting period. RBIE -

32. COMMITMENTS 32. A&iE

AEBH2021F %2020 128318
I AT fR] & ARTE o

The Group did not have any capital commitment as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. @B AR5
(a) Transaction with related parties (a) EEREEE A IR 5
% B ISR E A 2R i

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in

the financial statements, the Group had the following SO - RE B ARGEE R
significant transactions with related parties during the FHETUTERRZS ¢
year:
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Morris PRC RAH
Rental expenses (note (a)) HERSZ (FIFE@)) 15,754 11,670
Compensation on factory relocation  BiE B E (Fi5E5)
(note 5) - 18,683
Consideration on disposal of HEMBARRE
subsidiaries - 243,161
Morris Capital Limited RREXRERAT
Consideration on disposal of LERBARKE
subsidiaries 35,056 -

i BERE 7T 19 2 B AR AR R R

The above related parties are companies controlled by

the Controlling Shareholders. The transactions were FIWAR] - ZEFER 5 IIRIEAE
conducted on terms and conditions mutually agreed BRI 477 18 5 19 € MO 1630 R 15
between the relevant parties. AT o

Note: Fi5E

(@) These related party transactions also constitute non-exempt (a) ZERE RS IVER ET A

continuing connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A FUAEEENTEREHER
of the Listing Rules. ERG e
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conmivueD) 33. B AR S

(b) Amount due from a shareholder (b) ER—BRRIE
An analysis of the balances with shareholder is as follows: HRER AR AT T -

2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T T AREF T
Mr. Zou B 322 324
() Amounts due from related parties () FEWREEE S IE
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had the REER - AEEHREE S
following material balance with its related parties: LA TEXRGER
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Morris PRC* RARE* 180,359 92,833
Haining Morris Trading Co., Ltd. BEERNEHERAT 162 162
Masia Investment Limited ELIREBRAT] 7 -
180,528 92,995
Less: allowance for expected credit i : TEEME EEIERE
loss (Note 37) (F7E37) (1,026) (474)
179,502 92,521
* The balance was mainly due to prepayment of rental expenses, * EHRFEARENHEERS - &
details please refer to note 33(a). 155 R HiFE33() °
The above related parties are companies controlled by the i BE U7 A AR AR BRI &Y
Controlling Shareholders. Amounts due from the related AE] o JEUCREEES 77 RRIE R R
parties are unsecured, interest-free and recoverable on - B RIRESRIRE o
demand.
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conmivueD) 33. B AR S

(d) Compensation of key management (d) mEBFEEEAENF
personnel of the Group [5)

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T T AREF T
Fees e 2,286 1,346
Salaries, allowances and e RUREMER
benefits in kind 5,664 3,371
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAL 6,722 1,643
Pension scheme contributions RIRETEIHER 312 140
Total compensation paid to key IRTEEEBEAEN
management personnel S e gE 14,984 6,500
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in ExemE—DSHBHNY
note 8 to the financial statements. TEERFIFES ©
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

34. ®REARIEI D HY

BELMIARNK
P

HIRM AR EES

2021 20214
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets
at amortised cost
REBEARTENSREE
2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Trade receivables 2 ZrEWRIE 39,873 140,380
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5+ AJB[NFRIE « e R EM
deposits and other receivables FEWFIEN & & &= 26,121 39,764
Amount due from a shareholder FEU — R AR FRIE 322 324
Amounts due from related parties JE L B ESE 75 SRR 179,502 92,521
Pledged deposits [REEEGVES /N 14,705 70,238
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 13,485 35,969
274,008 379,196
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. EARIEI DT M TR
(CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities TRBE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBERATENSRERE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFIT
Trade and bills payables B S ENFIERENER 179,145 265,237
Financial liabilities included in FTAE M RIB R ER B
other payables and accruals AMeRasE 43,320 49,766
Amounts due to related parties JEAS RERS 5 7B 27,734 46,575
Lease liabilities HEAE 25,002 38,893
Convertible Loan AT E R 69,977 84,356
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings & 83877 & H &K 64,616 94,734
409,794 579,561
Derivative financial
instruments
PTESBMIA
2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARBFIT
Derivative financial instruments TESRBMTA 313
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35. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 35. B ESMEE
Transferred financial assets that are TERIEANCEZSH
derecognised in their entirety BE

At 31 December 2021, the Group discounted and endorsed
certain bills receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China
(the “Derecognised Bills”) to certain banks in order to obtain
additional financing or certain of its suppliers in order to
settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with carrying
amount in aggregate of approximately RMB73,322,000 (2020:
approximately RMB27,765,000). The Derecognised Bills had a
maturity of one to nine months (2020: one to six months) at
31 December 2021. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills
have a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default (the "Continuing Involvement”). The Derecognised
Bills were honoured by reputable banks in the PRC, such as
China Merchants Bank, Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China and other reputable banks rating at A- and A respectively
by national credit rating agencies. In the opinion of the
directors, these banks have good reputation and credit quality,
and the risk of default of these bills receivable on maturity is
remote, and therefore, the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills since
after the transfer the Group’s exposure to the variability in the
amounts of the net cash flows of the transferred asset is not
significant. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated liabilities.
The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash
flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to their
carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values
of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills

are not significant.

REZXEEBRER AR 2021 F3;

202112 A31H » AEERET
RITHE S THEME RESPE
W RITHE AN S TIREBELES 7
%9 5 ANR#73,322,0007T (20204 -
#35 ANR¥27,765,0007T ) K fE UK
B(&RLBIBREE]) - LUESEINING
B EERNZEHERNE ZEN
I o RIFEREIER 2021128
31HBEFT—ZNEA (20205 : —=F
NER)EIE - BIEPEARLME
FBA  WEPEIRITELD - KRIERE
REBFBEABEAASERZR([#
BESH]) - RILHERER HBEPEE
MARITA, - BEET - PEL
RIRITREREETREES FIG T
A-RATF R EMAMAIRIT - EER
5B ZERTEBEREEERERE
BZEREBERNIBHENRRE
W MASEEEBRIEEREEA
BRBARE SRR RER - e tE
Bt AEBRASCEEEESH
EREHEEHNARLTEKN - W
RITERR IBRERREEEED
SHREE - AEBEEDHKIE
REBFTAERG & AERRR A RIEE
ZERIBREBORGBRSR=
EEREREmE -EFRA - A5H
BESHEE PTERBZENAAEBEL T
B
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments reasonably approximate to fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, the current portion of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings and amounts due from/to
related parties approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly to the
chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief

financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a

forced or liquidation sale.
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conrinuep)

During the year, there was no transfer of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into
or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities
(2020: Nil).

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair

value is observable.

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
guoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

36. e TEAENARBERAR
BERE)

FREMEENSRBES1ARE?2
BANEFE W EER - EE
ASEE 3 A5 (20209F « &) o

TREHERVAERRIZAENE
TRBEAENAERREENERSE
123 SR TADN

Paas

- FEANEFEENEREE

SR ERERTISHHRECRE

HE)FH -

- B2RAAREFEEREE(R
Bk EE (BB EBR1TES
B BAZR(F1EMEREE
EXRENAIBRRERINE
$o

—  FE3RANEFEBBERM
AEBL HRBEREEXA
AW IFENABRTHEE (T
ABERBABR) NBABUER

RAKEERERAT 2021 £ 193

S




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. @@t TEHAREBENL AL
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTivueD) BEHfE)

Financial asset and liabilities measured at fair BEAREBESENEREERE
value &
2021
20215
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R 248 B34 @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARBTT NS
Liabilities 8
Derivative financial instruments TESRMIA - - 78 78
2020
20205
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
R E28 #3; @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Liabilities afE
Derivative financial instruments TEEBMIA - 313 - 313
Fair value of financial liabilities that are not measured at fair KRIRAAEFEEREE R RER
value (but fair value disclosure are required): ENeRiaEANE
2020
20205
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EAF EyE £30 st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT AREFT ARETT
Convertible Loan AHERER - - 91,119 91,119
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

The fair value of derivative and liability component of
Convertible Loan was valued by an independent valuer. It was
calculated by discounting the future cash-flow at market rate
and including some unobservable inputs. See note 26 for the
detailed information and the movement of the fair value of

derivative financial instruments.

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the
key inputs to the valuation of derivative financial instruments:

TR IAENAARERRR

EBEL )
BREEIRAABETENER

ABREFITERBERONARE
BB MERMGE - JIEBETISH
R RET AR MR B A BIRR IR
ARALREFNE - BRATESRT
BENHAER R AR ERE - F2H
MiEE26

ATET 4 €/ T M EMAAE
BT R ERHARE

Fair value Valuation Significant
hierarchy technique unobservable inputs 2020
AREEER (HERW EATAEERARE 20204
Convertible Loan Level 3 Binomial pricing model  Risk-free rate 0.25% 0.11%
AHARER F=E TEAEEREN ERBAMNE
Volatility 112.22% 86.90%
B8
Discount rate 11.42% 13.90%
i3
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amount due from a
shareholder, amounts due from related parties, trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due to related
parties, convertible loan, lease liabilities, interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and
bills receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise directly

from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The directors review and agree policies for managing each

of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to variable-rate
borrowings. It is the Company’s policy to keep its borrowings at
fixed rates of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk.

The Company has no significant interest-bearing liabilities
except for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and lease
liabilities, details of which have been disclosed in notes 23 and

21 respectively.

The Company has no significant interest rate risk during the

year.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  37. iR EIE B KIE

AND POLICIES (continueD)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair
value or future cash flows of financial instruments which arose
from changes in exchange rates.

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the exchange rates of currencies other than
the functional currencies of the relevant operating units, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities). There is no material impact on other components of
the Group’s equity.

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign exchange exposure should the need arises. Under
the forward exchange contract, the financial impact arising
from changes in exchange rates between GBP and US$ is not
expected to be significant and therefore, the corresponding
sensitivity analysis is not prepared.

(#)
SN L B

SMNERBIES B T AR R REHARR
BenERERSEmKEH R o

AEEAZRZEBAR - ZFER
TR 2 BEALA BRI NI BEE B LASH
MEBETEEMEL

TREMERAEMEERST TER
BT B (HEREE B M6
BRI EXNAERBEEEH A
SEBHAEN(EREREERA
BEORAREES) NGREDN - &
SEEDSNEMEHT D WESZEAF

2,
2

A E B R ESNE SRR - A
- AREEREEERIERR - A
RRAHREE EE R EAIMER
B o RIBEHSMES K - FAHRE R
FHXTEXREHELNM BT EL
TEXR - FARITEFERBRNGURE
DT

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in exchange in profit
rates before tax
ERLEH RRBEAT R R
(&) i, Cr2)
% RMB’000
% ARBTF T
2021 20214
If RMB weakens against US$ M AREHETE 5 5,367
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARERETHAE (5) (5.367)
2020 20204
If RMB weakens against US$ WAREEETEE 5 6,679
If RMB strengthens against US$ i AR H ETTAHE (5) (6,679)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continueD)
Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank balances
and deposits, trade receivables, deposit and other receivables.
The carrying amounts of these balances represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties are reputable banks.
The existing counterparties do not have defaults in the past.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of cash at bank is assessed
to be close to zero and no provision was made as of 31
December 2021 and 2020.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the
use of the lifetime expected credit loss for all trade receivables
and general model provision for all deposits and other
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses by applied
simplified approach, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics. The Group has performed
historical analysis and identified the key economic variables
impacting credit risk and expected credit loss. For the deposits
and other receivables, the Group assessed the expected loss
rate by applying general model. The expected credit loss rate
under general model was determined by referencing of the
market credit rating data and the probability of default rate.
It considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-

looking information.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  37. iR EIE B KIE

AND POLICIES (continuED) (%)
Credit risk (Continued) EERkE)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, trade receivables that
are individually significant have been separately assessed for
impairment. The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the background and
reputation of the customers, historical settlement records and

past experience.

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from individual
customers in relation to manufacture and sales of sofa, sofa
covers and other furniture products and are transacted in cash
or credit. The Group's trade receivables arise from manufacture
and sales of sofa, sofa covers. As at the end of the year, the top
five debtors and the largest debtor accounted for approximately
of 52.6% and 20.8% (2020: 76.5% and 27.9%) of the Group’s
trade receivables balance. In view of the history of business
dealings with the debtors and the sound collection history of
the receivables due from them, management believes that there
is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
receivable balance due from these debtors saved for the debtor
related to the impaired trade receivables disclosed in the below.
Management makes periodic assessment on the recoverability
of the trade and other receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of overdue period, the financial strength
of the debtors and whether there are any disputes with the
debtors.

720214 202012 H31H + &R
BEANE S EBFIACIEBLRER
o REBRBEPHSRRES -
BEZELCHEERBELRE - HREEGK
TE ) U B 1 1T E BB R o

REEBRBHWGSREEEEREE
DE - PBRERHEMREERERD
FBARER WARESHKEERETR
% AEBEMESRUGREEERLE
ERBEEDBERDEE - RER -
AARBEBARBGREBAGAER
B 5 JEWGRIB 4 #24952.6% 5% 20.8%
(2020%F : 76.5% % 27.9% ) - &AL
BEBANBARER S REREER
FEMBRIELEE  EEEMRERN
EEREWZEEEANRERERERK
BHEBITESEAMAEERR - HH
TXFEBREREZZEKFIBEEH
MEB AR - EEERBEEBAN
AP BEBRR - BBED
MEEEAZEBREEETMAY -
BE 5 N Kt JE WK IE B AT U5 [0 14 3
T HARTAS -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continueD)

Credit risk (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade receivables

are due within 30 to 120 days from the date of billing.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s

different customer bases.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continuED)

Credit risk (Continued)

Provision of ECL on trade receivables

On that basis, the provision of trade receivables as at 31

December 2021 and 2020 was determined as follows:

37. AR EE B ZNMBR

(&)

EERkE )

B RUSEREEEREE
RZESE - 720214 2020512 A
NENEZRKFIRREETHNT

More than
1 day but less Credit-
than 1 year impaired
31 December 2021 No past due past due (note)
it ey = FERE
2021512A31H KA BLME (Ki5E)
Expected credit loss rate BHEEHEX 2.22% 5.26% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREAE(ARETT)
— Trade receivables —BHREWE 27,524 13,680 10,276 51,480
Provision for ECL BHEEBERE (611) (720) (10,276) (11,607)
More than
1 day but less Credit-
than 1 year impaired
31 December 2020 No past due past due (note) Total
AHEBIA EERE
2020%12A31H Nk BOREF GiE3) @it
Expected credit loss rate BHEERREX 1.48% 4.73% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) ~ FREAE(ARET L)
- Trade receivables -BEHRUE 124,848 18,239 4314 147,401
Provision for ECL EHEEEERE (1,844) (863) (4,314) (7,021)

Note: Trade receivables with more than 1 year past due are considered as credit
impaired, with ECL provision of approximately RMB10,276,000 (2020:
RMB4,314,000) were assessed individually.

Mzt : DB FALNEZREFBEESE
BEERE BHEEEBEBEEOA
R 10,276,000 7T (2020 F : AR ¥
4,314,0007) EAEE RIS °
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  37. iR EIE B KIE

AND POLICIES (continueD) (&)

Credit risk (Continued) EERkE)

Provision of ECL on trade receivables (Continued) B ENSEAEEEERE
(%)

2021F %2020 12 A31BME S
JEWGRIETR B E s a AT ¢

The provision of ECL for trade receivables as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 was as follows:

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL - not ECL -
credit- credit-
impaired impaired Total
2HENMEE Z2HBEHEE
BE-RBE FE-BSB4E
EERE FEERE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETFT ARBTFT
As at 1 January 2020 7202051 H1H 5,431 12,398 17,829
Reversal of provision for the  FREERE D
year (2,724) (8,084) (10,808)
As at 31 December 2020 and 72020512 A31H &
1 January 2021 2021F1H1H 2,707 4,314 7,021
Provision/(reversal) for TR, (BE)
the year (1,376) 5,962 4,586
As at 31 December 2021 72021612 A31H 1,331 10,276 11,607
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continueD)

Credit risk (Continued)

Provision of ECL on deposits and other receivables

The provision for deposits and other receivables as at 31

December 2021 and 2020 was as follows:

37. MIEEMRER BIZNMEBCR

(#)
EERME)

e REMEKS BB ISEE
EEE

R20214 202012 A31 BRZE
R EAM R GRTE BT

Lifetime Lifetime

ECL - not ECL -

credit- credit-
12m ECL impaired impaired Total

2HEHEE 2HEAGE

1218 BE-RE+ /BE-BRE
BHEEER FERE FERE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETFT AREFT
As at 1 January 2020 202051718 81 - - 81
Provision for the year FREE 103 - - 103

As at 31 December 2020 and 20204124318 &

1 January 2021 20211 A1H 184 - - 184
Reversal of provision for the year &R EERE (94) - - (94)
As at 31 December 2021 #2021512 4318 90 - - 90
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continueD)

Credit risk (Continued)

Deposit and other receivables

Deposits and other receivables relating to accounts that are

long overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies

or nonresponse to collection activities, they are assessed

individually for impairment allowance. The Group recognised

the provision for expected credit losses by assessing the credit

risk characteristics of debtor, discount rate and the likelihood of

recovery and considering the prevailing economic conditions.

Provision of ECL on amounts due from related

parties

The provision for amounts due from related parties as at 31

December 2021 and 2020 was as follows:

12m ECL

37.

s R E TR B IR MUK
()

(B AE )
B RAMERNE

HEEHRHNENTE SHNENE
BERHWHTR ML EHRF AR
MRS M E A RO - K E B EHE
BEBHE - AERBEBFEEFADN
EERBRAR - BRI R RO R AT 68
M E B E R AR - R TR
EEERERE -

RSB B ERR
B

7220214F 120204 12 A31 B 8 fE 1K
BAM S BRI T

Lifetime Lifetime

ECL - not ECL-

credit- credit-
impaired impaired Total

2HRMEE 2HRUEE

128 BE-RB+ /FE-BRE

RAEEER EERE FERE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT

As at 1 January 2020 R202041 A 18 - - - -

Provision for the year FRRHE 474 - - 474
As at 31 December 2020 and ©202012A318 %

1 January 2021 20211 H1H 474 - - 474

Provision for the year FREE 552 - - 552

As at 31 December 2021 #20214512 4318 1,026 - - 1,026
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES ~ 37. IR EE B 2 RBUR
AND POLICIES (conminuep) (&)
Credit risk (Continued) EERg )
Amounts due from related parties FEW B 5~ E
For amounts due from related parties, the management MBS RIEM S - BIEERE

makes periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of
amount due from related parties based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking

information. The management believes that there are no

B EERE  BELBIAERRE
BERREEENZEEREEER &
H 5 e 5 A e 75 RRIR 2 P U Bl M E AT
ERIFHE - EIRERS - BFIFHER
% ZEeBEERRILEBREE

significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial me RAEER+ _EAEREEEE
recognition and the Group provided impairment based on 12m ETIRBE R -

ECL.

Liquidity risk MENE SR

The Group's objectives are to maintain a prudent financial
policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to
maintain a contingency plan for funding to ensure that
the Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity

requirements.

RER

AEENEERAREEENMBR
B/ UREBERBREZERHESL
ERERFE TR E - EMEERA
SEERRRSEINERDESE
ko
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continuED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities

for its financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments

at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial

liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash

flows (including interest payments computed using contractual

rates and based on rates at the end of the reporting period) and

the earliest date that the Group could be required to repay:

37.

BT R
(4)

neETRERE)

TRHFVRAEESREEREHR
TREBEMIEEBTANKRTAL
FEER - BIMRBEAORMBERE
ME(BRERGONERBERS
HIRFEFENF S ) RAE

b B 1 B AR SR

EA R EREENRFAMMGSH

Within 1 year or on demand

PM1ERRIRER

2021 2020

20215 20204F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREFTT

Trade and bills payables B S ENFIBRENER 179,145 265,237
Financial liabilities included in other T A M FE RIE R

payable and accruals EETERNESRAE 43,320 49,766

Amounts due to related companies A REzk NG 27,734 46,575

Derivative financial instruments PSRBT A 78 313

Lease liabilities HEaE 13,032 18,680

Convertible Loan ATRIRE R 69,977 84,356

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &2 8877 & E b &K 64,616 94,734

397,902 559,661
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continuED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

37. AR EE B ZNMBR

(4)
mEE TR )

After 1 year

but within 2 years

1225 R
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Lease liabilities HEAE 9,399 11,905

After 2 years
but within 5 years

2ESFR
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AR¥ETT
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,953 8,848

After 5 years

HIBSF
2021 2020
2021%F 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T AR¥ETT
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,383 2,388
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continuED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its

business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is the
total debts (comprised of amounts due to related companies,
lease liabilities, Convertible Loan and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings) divided by the total equity. Total equity refers
to equity attributable to owners of the Company. The gearing

ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

37.
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s R E TR B IR MUK
(4)

EeEH

AEBEESEENTRZARA/RER
SENIFEL LR  URERFRRE
BB DR  ASTREE R -

REBBBRCE RN (LIRE R
FAREERERE - RERIHAEER
e AEEA AR TR AR
BAELFAE - MREREE RS HET
HRRD - B E 20214 22020412 B
3NALLFE  EEEANEEZ - BER
SIEF LR EE -

AEBEERERAARLX(AERR
B(BEEENRBARFE  HES
&~ ATRRER LA BRIT R E S
PO AR BT EAN - Ban il
RIEADRHA AEEER - B
EHMRNEERBLRNT

2021 2020

20216 20204

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TF T ARBFIT

Total debts B4R 187,329 264,558
Equity attributable to owners of RARIEE AEGER

the Company (49,541) 76,567

Gearing ratio BEAGL R N/AFEH 345.5%
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38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 19 January 2022, Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products
Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co., Ltd.
(collectively, the “Relevant Subsidiaries”), both being
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group, filed
pre-restructuring applications with the People’s Court of
Haining City (the “Court”) to request the Court to allow
the Relevant Subsidiaries to formulate pre-restructuring
plans to resolve their debt positions. Further details were
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 19
January 2022.

On 25 February 2022, the Company and the placing agent
entered into the placing agreement pursuant to which the
Company appointed the placing agent to place, subject
to the fulfillment of the conditions precedent to the
placing, a maximum of 200,000,000 placing shares to not
less than six independent placees at a price of HK$0.12
per placing share. The placing shares was completed
on 23 March 2022. Further details were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 25 February 2022,
28 February 2022 and 23 March 2022.

On 22 April 2022, the Company and a potential subscriber
("Potential Subscriber”) entered into a memorandum of
understanding, pursuant to which the Potential Subscriber
intents to subscribe for and the Company intends to allot
and issue 1,300,000,000 new shares of the Company.
Further details were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 22 April 2022.

38. MEHIE =1

(a)

202291 8198 » LK
ENFELBRABD IR
RREEHREARAA(HER
[EEMBLAR]) HAKEE
WEZE2ENBAR @ AEE
MARZER (AR ) iRETESE
BEHE - BRER AR AE RN
BARRTHEERFRUER
HEBMKR - BEA®E—FF1B
HAARARBER2022F1 R
19BHAE o

MR202292A25H © A& E
RMERBILEEHZE @ &
gt ARRRIEZFRERER
FRESFHEZ A REHEEERK
& ABREERH0.12BT
BB A | A D 387X W S B
ABLE 5 %200,000,0000% it &
Bfn o BLEMR E R 202253 A
23H K o E—FEFIFENA
AR B A2022F2 8258 -
2022F2 A28H K%202243 23

SN

720224 8228 KA HE
—BECERBE(IBERE
B L—ERBEESE
Bt BERBERRAEMD
RANRERELE RETARQF
1,300,000,000 8% ¥ % 15 o 3 —
SR BHNART AEA2022
FARNAHZRE
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE ~ 39.

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

RRRIFIFARA T

BRARBRBERRNFBEARRAER

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

HARIT -

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETFIT
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHEB AR E 6 6
Current assets REEE
Other receivables E b e U GRIE 18 110
Amounts due from subsidiaries S NGIE ¢ 7,744 173,285
Amounts due from related companies ek NGI B Q] 6,451 6,528
Cash and cash equivalents ReFREEEY 204 23
Total current assets M EELE 14,417 179,946
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables and accruals E b e ROE K R B 4,429 1,407
Other borrowings HAb AR 10,126 -
Convertible loan AR E R 69,977 84,356
Total current liabilities mE) B EERE 84,532 85,763
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(ak), EEFE (70,115) 94,183
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBERS (70,109) 94,189
Net (liabilities)/assets (BE) BEFE (70,109) 94,189
Equity L
Share capital &N 6,914 6,914
Reserves (note) bt (i sE) (77,023) 87,275
Total equity e iaER (70,109) 94,189
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

39. RAFIBEARREK &)

COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: BeE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARREERMRAT
Exchange
Share Treasury fluctuation Accumulated
premium shares reserve losses Total
NS
RDBEE EERG *E RitEE st
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ETTT AR¥ETFTT AR¥EFT ARETTT AR¥EFTT
As at 1 January 2020 720201 A1H 153,071 (2,269) (6,723) (45,335) 98,744
Loss for the year FAEE - - - (994) (994)
Other comprehensive income  FREM 2L
for the year:
Exchange differences on BRE B S REH
translation of financial EHER
statements - - (3,752) - (3,752)
Total comprehensive loss for FREEEEEE

the year - - (3,752) (994) (4,746)
Share repurchased 2R RN - (6,723) - - (6,723)
As at 31 December 2020 and 7202012 A31H &

1 January 2021 20211 A18 153,071 (8,992) (10,475) (46,329) 87,275
Loss for the year FREE - - - (150,723) (150,723)
Other comprehensive loss for ~ FREMEHEEIE

the year:

Exchange differences on HME B TERERE

translation of financial EHERE
statements - - (13,575) - (13,575)
Total comprehensive loss for FREEEIBEE

the year - - (13,575) (150,723) (164,298)

At as 31 December 2021 7202112 A31H 153,071 (8,992) (24,050) (197,052) (77,023)
AT YA
40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 40. Bz /&

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue

by the board of directors on 10 May 2022.

BB RERON2022F5A10R EES
G IR TES o
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AEPHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B B20219F 12431 HIFF/Z

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities TFXFrEARERZIABTEEED A
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the WMELZEUREERBEZBME - A
audited financial statements, is set out below: KEZBT W

Year ended 31 December

BZNAMNALEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20215 20204 20194 20184 20174

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NS AP ARBETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR

(Restated)
(= &7)
RESULTS ET |
Revenue WA 502,932 606,363 980,298 1,610,043 1,416,395
Cost of sales HEMA (403,276) (547,597) (877,211)  (1,181,999) (937,864)
Gross profit E7 99,656 58,766 103,087 428,044 478,531
(Loss)/profit before tax BREAI(ER), R A (120,286) (87,840) (178,943) 100,286 184,043
Income tax (expenses)/credit SRS,/ EE (3,116) (2,890) 38,253 (13,881) (38,348)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),/EH (123,402) (90,730) (140,690) 86,405 145,695
Year ended 31 December
HEN2A31BLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20214 20204 20194 20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INGLETN AREFT  ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Restated)
(L2 E3))
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets BERE 374,882 676,852 1,344,964 1,432,152 1,142,847
Total liabilities BafE (426,053) (600,109)  (1,147,997)  (1,064,831) (802,688)
(51,171) 76,743 196,967 367,321 340,159
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